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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (THE “GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company’)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
Statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements® page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com for
a minimum period of 7 days from the date of its publication and on the Company’s website at www.cafgroup.hk.
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Corporate Information

N RER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xiao Li

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chang Xi Min (Chairman)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kai Wing

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Po Ling Pauline

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chen Xiao Li

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon
Ms. Wong Po Ling Pauline

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Kai Wing (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Kai Wing (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam
Mr. Chan Kai Wing

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Zhangjiakou City Commercial Bank

Bank of China, Zhangjiakou Branch, Hebei Province
China Merchants Bank, Xiamen Branch

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd, Xiamen Wen Bin Branch

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

First Shanghai Capital Limited
19th Floor, Wing On House,
71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Units 03-05, 17th Floor, K. Wah Centre
191 Java Road, North Point
Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Units 71, 72 and 73, Level 6 of Tower 4, Fortune Centre
No. 3 Shi Fu Main Street West, Gao Xin District, Zhangjiakou City,
Hebei Province, The People’s Republic of China
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, P. O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(Existing Public Office until 30 March 2014)

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(New Public Office with effect from 31 March 2014)

WEBSITE
www.cafgroup.hk
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Financial Summary

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+t-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—2-=f —T—F —T——F ZT-TF —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TT AR®TRT AR®TT AR®TRT
RESULTS #i5
Revenue e 16,316 23,987 45,108 32,923 3,300
Other Income H A 3,296 2,481 764 614 2,877
Administrative and operating
expenses TBRLERY (23,650)  (15,586)  (10,600) (8,248) (3,064)
Listing expenses il - (3,633) (8,274) - -
Equity-settled PARR AR BEER
share-based payment expenses (ABRAREEH)
53 (2,515)  (11,571) - - -
Finance cost IR DN (1,863) - - — -
(Loss)/profit before income tax FiEEial (B8)
Vet (8,416) (4,322) 26,998 25,289 3,113
Income tax expense FEHEX (2,696) (4,515) (9,456) (7,277) (978)
(Loss)/profit for the year AFE (BB
Vet (11,112) (8,837) 17,542 18,012 2,135
(Loss)/profit for the year EEREE (B1E)
attributable to: Ve ik
Owners of the Company AREHEBA (11,172) (9,486) 16,174 17,112 1,975
Non-controlling interests FERER 60 649 1,368 900 160
(11,112) (8,837) 17,542 18,012 2,135
As at 31 December
R+=B=t—-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“E2-=f —T-_—F —T——% —T-TF —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAEE
Total assets mEE 291,134 228,405 189,437 168,260 161,913
Total liabilities BeE (81,428) (31,102)  (136,884)  (137,224)  (151,585)
Net assets BEEFE 209,706 197,303 52,5653 31,036 10,328
Non-controlling interests FERER (7,083) (7,023) (6,374) (6,006) (5,106)
Equity attributable to owners AAREE A
of the Company Gz 202,623 190,280 46,179 25,030 5,222
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Financial Summary
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On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present to all of our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and the public
the annual report of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

In 2013, global industrial production and trade was weak while the
international financial markets continued to be volatile, and world
economic growth continued to decline slightly. The People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) is facing a perplexing external economic
environment. In the PRC, the government implemented
macroeconomic transformation and upgrading policies in order to
achieve sustainable growth. According to China’s National Bureau
of Statistics, gross domestic product (GDP) of the PRC grew by
7.7% in 2013, which was the same as 2012. But the slowdown in
the real economic growth rate in the PRC directly affected the
business operation of small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMESs”),
which is the main service recipient of the Group’s financial guarantee
business. The Group’s business is facing challenges.

Additionally, the PRC government continued to its macroeconomic
tightening of the real estate industry during the year. The pace in
real estate construction and development projects inevitably slowed
down, which has impacted the majority of the Group’s customers
who are mostly engaged in real estate-related businesses in the PRC.

Although the PRC’s economic growth has been slowing down, GDP
has hit a large volume after the country’s rapid development in recent
decades. Thus, even though growth is slightly slower, the growth
volume is still of a very considerable amount. According to the China
National Bureau of Statistics data, the PRC’s GDP in 2013 reached
RMB56.8845 trillion, an increase of nearly RMB5 trillion compared
with 2012. This increment is equivalent to the annual total GDP of
the PRC in 1994. In such a large economy, the financing needs of
SMEs in the PRC (an important part of the PRC’s economy) are still
very high. During the year, revenue from the Group’s financial
guarantee business has increased by approximately 21%, which
shows that the Group’s business continues to maintain good growth
momentum under this complex economic environment.

Chairman’s Statement
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The Chinese State Council published (Opinion on financial support
for the implementation of small and micro enterprise development?)
on August 8, 2013, which called for an increase in the credit rating
service for SMEs. The policy statement illustrates that the national
macroeconomic policies are favorable to the long-term development
of the financial guarantee industry in the PRC.

Meanwhile, the Group is committed to further diversifying our
business scope and expanding revenue resources, so as to help the
Group reduce risks and improve profitability. We have announced
that from April 2013, BR & 7| & B Bt £ BR % B R 2 7] (Guangdong
Heli Financial Technology Services Co., Ltd.* “Heli Financial
Technology”) and the Group shall begin a series of cooperation
efforts and utilize the existing platform of Heli Financial Technology
to apply for a national third-party payment and settlement license in
the PRC (the “License”). The Board believes, after successfully
obtaining the License, the business plan of the two companies will
help the Group expand the existing business and provide SMEs a
more comprehensive financing platform.

The Group believes although the economic environment is complex,
we consistently strive to explore new businesses with great potential,
such as the one mentioned above, and consolidate the existing
financial guarantee business. Thus, the Group can still maximize the
returns to shareholders and further reduce risks. Meanwhile, we will
also continue to look for opportunities to expand the service platform,
enhance the quality of our services as well as strengthen the Group’s
risk control. We will benefit all shareholders, partners and the
community with our excellent operating results.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Group’s
Directors, management team and staff members for their dedication
and hard work, our customers for their confidence and support for
our business, and our business partners, investors, shareholders
and professional parties for their trust and support.

Chang Xi Min
Chairman

24 March 2014

* For identification purpose only

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

INFORMATION ON THE GROUP AEBZ2ER

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing financial 7% @ = 2 /A dh B 1 H42 (L gt B =R IRTE -
guarantee services, performance guarantee services and advisory 8 #)¥E R AR5 M BER AR TS 2 275 -
services in the PRC.

In respect of the financial guarantee services, in principle, the Group ~ FLEIEERRSM S » AEBEAK -5 BIE
facilitates SMEs by acting as the guarantor for them to secure credit  EFH/NEZHERA - RER/NDERERK
facilities from lending banks. RITREEERE -

The Group also provides its customers with performance guarantees, ANEENATRFREBLHER  TRAEFPH
guaranteeing that the customers will perform their contractual A RBYHHREEFCHBITEBAHNET
obligations to the counter-parties in relation to, inter alia, delivery of ~ BIEEW « RGN EME (T B XA
goods, services contracts and other obligations. Save for the #lt4h » REBE GRESEBOER - &
aforesaid, the Group is also permitted to provide various kinds of BB NREAIRIZIER - E SHEBBIERNFA
performance guarantees, including without limitation, provision of REIER » WAEBEHKIZHEBER -
contract tendering, bidding guarantee, trade-related guarantees and

litigation bond, which are yet to be provided by the Group.

In addition to the provision of guarantee services, the Group also  KIZMEIERRIEI - AEEMEF RS
provides its customers with advisory services. The advisory services  R# - BRI R 5§ E MR ()& P HE KR
aim to strengthen (i) the customers’ communication with the lending 77 * £ BB SR S 2 #8875 288 + M)
banks, financial institutions or their counter-parties; and (i) the &P ¥ @& %R M EE I RIS EH 2 i 8
understanding on the recent developments of financing regulations, #%E 2 7% o BiEAEBEYIRTEEHHE
and policies and market practices. With the Group’s knowledge of il 2 3% » AEBEARBE A Z5
banks’ credit assessment practice, the Group is able to assist its &3t - B RZHFLERAM T -

customers in improving their financial, accounting and management

systems and presentation.

The Company’s Shares was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange AR BIRHNR-ZE——F— A NHEBZAT
since 6 January 2012. BlEER o

BUSINESS REVIEW E¥ e

Global economy continued to be impacted by the financial crisis IRIEERZFES —T—=F 7 L RGHK LE
and the debt crisis in Europe in 2013. The Organisation for Economic — M{E&ES BT/ o F341ER 8B B 2 &
Co-operation and Development (OECD), comprising 34 member E& {EEZE R BE4(OECD)E 4/ - HAKEBRR
countries, announced that total gross domestic product (‘GDP”) of —Z—Z=ZFBRAN4AELE ([GDP)) K
its member countries in 2013 has increased by 1.3%, down from  1.3% * th =T — —F1.5%(K o B2 IR
1.5% in 2012. Overall global economic recovery remained fragile.  EEELAMETS o P —Z — = FGDPH)E
China’s GDP reached approximately RMB56.9 trillion in 2013 and A R#569,0008 7T © IR FHEE7.7% » BELL,
represented an annual growth rate of 7.7%, which was slightly better B /7 B1Z7.5%AE - FRABERESEE
than the official target of 7.5%. China is aiming to maintain strong 2 RIRE X FEELE - B FEBFREE
growth while rebalancing its economy. In addition, China will also 12 MEE 2 BB iR BHh EBAFEE
retain a stable and prudent monetary policy. Based on the adjustment 7 % - REBBIEETHHE S
of the PRC government policy, the Group will take advantage of the & ~ BRENRZ TILER - WIRAAEEZ &
market opportunities to further consolidate, expand and diversify ~ FIgE ) - HMERI 2@ M FEH 2 ZERE -
our business, and increase the Group’s profitability in order to achieve

a comprehensive and balanced development.
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Cooperation Agreements and Letters of Intent

References are made to announcements of the Company dated 23
April 2013, 19 June 2013, 3 October 2013 and 19 December 2013.

On 22 April 2013 (after trading hours), &R & F|& B RHZ RS B R
A A (Guangdong Heli Financial Technology Services Co., Ltd.*, “Heli
Financial Technology”) and the Company entered into the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which Heli Financial Technology
and the Company shall cooperate and utilize the existing platform of
Heli Financial Technology to apply for a national third party payment
and settlement license in the PRC (the “License”).

On 19 June 2013, the Company, EMN T X BKREEEER R A
(Guangzhou Caiying Investment Management Limited*, “Caiying
Investment”), Mr. Zhang (the founder and shareholder of Heli
Financial Technology) and Heli Financial Technology entered into the
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which the Company, Caiying
Investment and Mr. Zhang will form a joint venture with a professional
team specialised in banking, laws, logistics, corporate management,
finance, trade, e-commerce, etc. with an aim to support the SMEs
and facilitate the development of local import and export industries.

EINAEFE AR BERZAA (Guangzhou Helipay Payment
Technology Limited*, “Helipay”), a subsidiary of Heli Financial
Technology, has commissioned A B #X 8 &% I .0y (China Software
Test Center®) a software test center certified by the People’s Bank of
China, to examine various safety and transaction security issues on
the third party payment and settlement platform (the “Platform”) to
be operated by Helipay regarding the services to be provided under
the License. On 22 September 2013, the Platform was certified to
be in compliance with the relevant requirements under 3F & B4 &
T EB R MR RERE (The Rules Governing the Payment
Facilities Technology of Non-financial Institutions*) and 3F % Bh i
ST EBEZEFRIMTREFEZ®RE L (The Rules Governing the
Implementation of Non-financial Institutions Payment Facilities*). On
29 September 2013, the relevant results of the technical examination
were published on the official website of the People’s Bank of China,
Guangzhou Branch, the commissioning authority of the License
application. As at the date of this report, the application of the License
is still being processed by the People’s Bank of China, Guangzhou
Branch.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

On 29 September 2013, Helipay received a letter of intent (the “LOI”)
from A B IRTTIR D B BR A 5] E M 8 3% 1T (China Construction
Bank, Guangzhou Railway Branch*, the “Bank”), pursuant to which
the Bank will act as the financial intermediary to facilitate the operation
of the Platform, and provide suitable financing products and services
to the clients, particularly SMEs, of Helipay and BN IE 2 ¥ E
B H PR A 7 (Guangzhou Junyan Management Company Limited*,
“Guangzhou Junyan”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Board believes that, upon successful application of
the License, the business plans as envisaged under the LOI will allow
the Group to expand its existing services and provide a more
comprehensive financing platform to SMEs.

In order to facilitate the business plans under the cooperation
agreements, the Group established Guangzhou Junyan in July 2013
as a domestic company. Guangzhou Junyan is wholly-owned by X
X 1T (EP9)ER AR A A (Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Company
Limited*, “Xiamen Da Sheng”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company. It is the intention of the Group that Guangzhou Junyan
will become a wholly-owned foreign enterprise in order to facilitate
the cooperation with Helipay regarding the services to be provided
upon the successful application of the License.

On 19 December 2013, a letter of intent was entered into amongst
() HEMHELIREXZREEED L (Shuishi Jewelry and Jade
Trade Development and Management Center*, “Jade Center”); (i)
e RS R E £ 824 R A 7)(Sihuishi Cuilimingzhu Jincuibao
Jade Company Limited*, “Cuilimingzhu”); (iii) Helipay; and (iv)
Guangzhou Junyan, pursuant to which, the parties agreed (i) to
establish an independent jade assessment and valuation committee
comprising experts in the jade industry to provide jade assessment
and valuation services to Cuilimingzhu and its clients; (i) that Helipay
and Guangzhou Junyan will develop a specialized electronic platform
for jade trading, which will be supported by the public services and
strategies provided by Jade Center and Cuilimingzhu to improve the
jade market in Sihuishi, Guangdong, the PRC (“Sihuishi”); (i) to
promote the establishment of a comprehensive credit system to
support corporate and individual participants in the jade market in
Sihuishi; (iv) to conduct other relevant acts to introduce investments
in the jade market in Sihuishi; and (v) to promote an innovative trading
and financing platform for the jade market in Sihuishi.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB16.32 million (2012: RMB23.99 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 32% as compared with
last year. Detailed analysis of revenue is as follows:

0

Financial Guarantee

Revenue from financial guarantee of the Group represented
revenue from the provision of financial guarantee services and
the relevant consultancy services.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue from financial
guarantee of the Group was approximately RMB16.32 million
(2012: approximately RMB13.54 million), representing an
increase of approximately 21% as compared with 2012, and
representing 100% of the Group’s total revenue in 2013 (2012:
approximately 56%). For the year ended 31 December 2013,
revenue from financial guarantee amounted to approximately
RMB16.32 million, of which approximately RMB8.06 million
derived from the provision of financial guarantee services and
approximately RMB8.26 million derived from the provision of
the relevant consultancy services.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue from financial
guarantee amounted to approximately RMB13.54 million, of
which approximately RMB6.62 million derived from the provision
of financial guarantee services and approximately RMB6.92
million derived from the provision of the relevant consultancy
services.

The number of new contracts regarding financial guarantee
entered into for the year ended 31 December 2013 was 79
(2012: 84), representing a slight decrease of approximately 6%
as compared with last year. Despite the decrease in the number
of new contracts regarding financial guarantee services, the
aggregate amount of its revenue increased due to the increase
in the average contract price of financial guarantee services.
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(ii)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Performance Guarantee

Revenue from performance guarantee of the Group represented
revenue from the provision of performance guarantee services
and the relevant consultancy services. As most of the Group’s
performance guarantee services customers are engaged in the
sale of construction material, water and heating installation and
sale, air-conditioning engineering and real estate development,
performance guarantee business of the Group was inevitably
impacted by the slowdown of the real estate development and/
or construction projects under the macro control policies in
the PRC. The Company adopts a more prudent approach and
constructive control and minimize the adverse impact from this
changing market and economic conditions to the Group. For
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not enter
into any performance guarantee services contracts (2012: 11)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue from
performance guarantee amounted to approximately RMB10.45
million, of which approximately RMB3.27 million derived from
the provision of performance guarantee services and
approximately RMB7.18 million derived from the provision of
the relevant consultancy services.

Other Income

The Group’s other income contained bank interest, government
grants and exchange gains. The Group’s other income for each of
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013 were approximately
RMB2.48 million and RMB3.30 million respectively. The increase of
approximately 33% was mainly attributable to the increases in the
amounts of pledged bank deposits and government grants during
the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Administrative and Operating Expenses

Administrative and operating expenses primarily consisted of (i)
impairment of account receivables; (ii) salary and welfare expenses
for management and administrative personnel; (i) depreciation and
amortization; (iv) rental expenses; and (v) other administrative
expenses including professional fees. For the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group’s administrative and operating expenses
amounted to approximately RMB23.65 million (2012: approximately
RMB15.59 million). The increase of administrative and operating
expenses was primarily due to the impairment of account receivables,
and the increase in staff costs, legal and professional fees, and other
related expenses resulting from our business growth.

Loss Before Income Tax and Loss Attributable to
Shareholders

Loss before income tax for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately RMB8.42 million, increased from loss of approximately
RMB4.32 million in 2012. Loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately RMB11.17
million, increased from loss of approximately RMB9.49 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012, which was mainly due to (i) the
substantial slowdown of performance guarantee services; and (ii)
the impairment of account receivables.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As of 31 December 2013, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB54.61 million
(2012: approximately RMB47.39 million) and approximately RMB9.33
million (2012: approximately RMB4.00 million) respectively,
representing an increase in pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB7.22 million and an increase in cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB5.33 million compared with 31 December 2012.
The Group generated negative cash flows of approximately
RMB24.44 million from operating activities during the year which
was attributable to, amongst others, (i) increase in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits paid; and (ii) increase in pledged bank
deposits.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER W R D

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not have
any borrowing which bore floating interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk primarily relates to the interest-bearing bank balances and
pledged bank deposits. The Group did not hedge its exposure to
interest rates during the year, but may enter into interest rate-hedging
instruments in the future to hedge any significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing total debts (i.e.
other borrowing) by total equity was Nil as at 31 December 2012
and 12% as at 31 December 2013. The amount due to Shareholders
as at 31 December 2012 was fully capitalized upon listing of the
Company on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Save for the other
borrowing of approximately RMB23.64 million (an unsecured loan
bore interest at a rate of 15% per annum and repayable on 25 March
2014) (2012: Nil), the Group did not have any borrowing as at
31 December 2013.

Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

On 7 May 2013, Xiamen Da Sheng entered into an agreement with
)il % — £ T AR (Sichuan Province First Construction
Engineering Company*, “First Construction Engineering”) to
transfer the Units A, B, C and D of 5th Floor of Building No.1 of
Aurora Liaohai International Building (“Aurora Liaohai”) to First
Construction Engineering in order to partially offset the construction
payment to First Construction Engineering, at the consideration of
RMB12,075,360.

On 20 December 2013, Xiamen Da Sheng entered into an agreement
with fEE K %5 & (Mr. Ren Qingcheng®) to sell the Units A, B, C of
each of 6th, 7th and 8th Floors of Building No. 1 of Aurora Liaohai at
the aggregate consideration of RMB40,158,040, gross floor area of
which amounted to 2,769.52 square meters.
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Aurora Liaohai is located at the southern side of Anli Road and the
western side of Central Business Zone of = #1 & 17 & (High End
Technology Park®), Huli District, Xiamen City, Fujian Province of the
PRC with a total site area of approximately 7,699.7 square meters
and permitted gross floor area of approximately 22,958 square
meters. Aurora Liaohai is currently under the final stage of
construction with all the superstructures completed in bare shell
condition as at 31 December 2013 and is expected to be completed
before 30 June 2014. The Group own 100% interest of Aurora Liaohai
as at 31 December 2013.

Save for the above disposals, the Group did not have any other
material acquisitions or disposals during the year ended 31 December
2013.

Significant Investment and Future Plans for
Material Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed above in this report, there were no significant
investments during the year ended 31 December 2013. Save as
disclosed under the paragraph headed “OUTLOOK” in this report,
there was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2013.

Grant of Share Option

On 21 May 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of 8,000,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$1.19 per Share to the eligible
persons, which entitled them to subscribe for an aggregate of
8,000,000 new ordinary Shares.

On 20 November 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of
47,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.63 per Shares
to the eligible persons, which entitled them to subscribe for an
aggregate of 47,000,000 new ordinary Shares. There is a vesting
condition in relation to the approval for the application of 3z 15 % 7%
A& (national third party payment and settlement license*) on
the 47,000,000 share options granted.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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OUTLOOK

In 2013, the global economy recovered slowly while the financial
markets were filled with uncertainty. Data from National Bureau of
Statistics of the PRC showed that the economic growth of the United
States in 2013 was lower than 2012 while growth in the Eurozone
still remained negative. Economic growth in the developing countries
such as India and South Africa also showed declining trend. At the
same time, China has experienced a long period of economic
adjustment. China’s economic growth was facing enormous
downward pressure during the year. Although the economic growth
of China slowed down for two consecutive quarters in the first half
of 2013, its economy remained stable for the whole year and annual
growth reached 7.7% for 2013.

During the year, the financial guarantee industry in the PRC became
more regulated and developed. The Chinese government has
tightened the regulation of the financial guarantee industry. Since
2013, the government began to amend the B & I R AR EEE
1T#%% (Interim Regulations on Financial Guarantee Corporation®),
which was published by 7 ministries of the Chinese government in
2010 with the purpose to clarify the regulation of the industry. Some
of the financial guarantee corporations were reshuffled since then.
Up to mid-October 2013, the mainland media published that 17
financial guarantee corporations withdrew from the market in the
area of Guangzhou City. The amount of business withdrawn
amounted to close to 20% of all the financial guarantee corporations
in Guangzhou City. The Group believed that after going through the
survival of the fittest, the financial guarantee industry will enjoy long,
sustainable and stable development. As the leading company of the
industry, the Group will seize the opportunity, benefit from the more
regulated market environment and look for the development
opportunities in a new era for the industry, so as to further expand
revenue sources and improve profitability.

Despite the financial guarantee industry of the PRC is facing plenty
of challenges, there are also full of opportunities. The Chinese State
Council published R & B 5/ NMIEEERMNEMKE R (Opinion
on Financial Support for the Implementation of Small and Micro
Enterprise Development*) on 8 August 2013, which clearly called for
an increase in the credit rating service for the SMEs in line with market
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positioning and functional orientation of the financial guarantee
industry. The policy statement illustrates that the central government’s
further recognition of the financing guarantee industry and the national
macroeconomic policies are favorable to long-term development of
the industry. The Group remains optimistic about the financial
guarantee industry’s long-term prospects in the PRC.

Looking into the future, the Group will continue to consolidate and
expand the provision of guarantee services and advisory services.
Also, the Group will expand and diversify the business in order to
improve profitability. The ongoing cooperation between Heli Financial
Technology and the Group is steadily developing in accordance with
the plan. Additionally, the Group also cooperates with Jade Center,
Cuilimingzhu and Helipay to develop an electronic platform for jade
trading, and promote innovative financing services in the jade market
in Sihuishi in order to achieve the target of an annual trading volume
of RMB200 billion by 2020.

The Board believes that the expansion of new business and
consolidation of the existing business will help the Group to achieve
a balanced and effective development. In a climate of industry
consolidation and survival of the fittest, which is full of new challenges
but also opportunities, the Group will continue to strengthen cost
management awareness, further optimize the management model
to improve management efficiency, and comprehensively promote
business development. We are confident to achieve stable and
sustainable development in order to generate satisfactory returns to
shareholders.

Capital Commitments and Capital Expenditure

Capital commitments represent the Group’s commitment in relation
to (i) the acquisition of a property (the “Hebei Property”) situated at
Unit 1 on Basement Level 2, Fortune Centre, No. 3 Shi Fu Main
Street West, Gao Xin District, Zhangjiakou, Hebei, the PRC, which
is intended for warehouse storage use by /it KB {TERAR A
7] (Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited*, “Hebei Da
Sheng”), a joint venture enterprise established in the PRC and an
indirect 95% owned subsidiary of the Company; and (ii) the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment which is to be held by
Rentop Limited (“Rentop”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. For further information in relation to the Hebei Property,
please refer to the Prospectus and the 2012 Annual Report of the
Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER W R D

The capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2013 not
provided for in the financial statements were approximately RMB1.76
million (2012: RMB1.76 million) for land and buildings, approximately
RMB1.63 million (2012: Nil) for property, plant and equipment and
Nil (2012: RMB21.68 million) for construction in progress.

The increment in capital expenditure of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 was approximately RMB38.59 million (2012:
approximately RMB29.40 million), representing an increase of
approximately 31.3%. Such increment was principally attributable
to the increase in expenditure in: (a) furniture, fixtures and office
equipment, (b) motor vehicles, and (c) construction of Aurora Liaohai;
as well as the addition and transfer from deposits paid in connection
with the Construction cost.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 55 employees
(2012: 36 employees). The Group’s total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) were approximately RMB4.99 million (2012:
RMB3.78 million). The remuneration policy is determined with
reference to market condition, performance and qualification.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has granted
an aggregate of 55,000,000 share options (2012: 150,000,000 share
options) to the eligible persons under the Share Option Scheme
adopted on 1 December 2011. The Group participates in the PRC
government-sponsored social security system as required under the
relevant PRC laws and regulations. The social security system in the
PRC includes retirement, work injury, medical care, unemployment
and other insurance coverage for the employees. The Group also
maintains the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme and insurance for
its employees in Hong Kong.
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no forfeited contributions
(by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by itself to reduce
the existing level of contributions.

Charge on Group Assets

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not have
any charges on its assets.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s main operations are in the PRC. Most of the assets,
income, payments and cash balances are denominated in RMB. The
Company has not entered into any foreign exchange hedging
arrangement. The Directors consider that exchange rate fluctuation
has no significant impact on the Company’s performance.

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Major Transaction in relation to Disposal of the
Properties

On 17 January 2014 (after trading hours), Xiamen Da Sheng, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with fEE X %t & (Mr. Ren Qingcheng*), an independent
third party, pursuant to which Xiamen Da Sheng has conditionally
agreed to sell and Mr. Ren Qingcheng has conditionally agreed to
purchase the 9th and 10th Floors of Building No.1 of Aurora Liaohai
at an aggregate consideration of RMB20,489,560. As one of the
applicable percentage ratios under the GEM Listing Rules in respect
of the aforementioned disposal when aggregated with certain
previous disposals exceeds 25% but is less than 75%, the disposal
constitutes a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 19
of the GEM Listing Rules. Further details of the disposal were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 January
2014 and circular of the Company dated 24 February 2014.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEN®R DN
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PIRKETT (RARHEZEREZHWBAR)
BOIEKEE BYE=H) BTz - &
It EFRRTERHERELEE REEKE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Change in Board Lot Size EXREFRHEETEN

On 13 February 2014, the Board announced that the board lot size RZZ—WNHF_-_A+=H €= ' »
for trading in the Shares on GEM will be changed from 10,000 Shares Bl EREER D 2 EFRMNEEEMLH H
to 2,000 Shares with effect from 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, 11 March 10,0004 A&2,0000% - R —Z—PWFE=A
2014. The Directors are of the view that the change in board lot size  +— B (28 =) EFABEREAR - EFR
will reduce the board lot value of the Shares and thus could improve  AE S FRH EE BN ERERND 2 EF
the liquidity of the Shares and broaden the Company’s shareholder &P E BB 2 EE @ WA NER D RES
base. The change in board lot size will not result in any change in ~ &IEFAA QA BIREER - BEXBFHRNHES
the relative rights of the Shareholders. The Directors consider that B i & E A% 3R 2 #8414 ) H 3R T a2k

N\ oo =5 oo

the change in board lot size is in the interests of the Company and % - EERAENBFRHEEELFEARN

the Shareholders as a whole. NE R R RN 5 o
Letter of Intent @&

On 11 March 2014, a letter of intent was entered into between RZ-ZT—NF=A+—H AREZHEES
Guangzhou Junyan, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the &M B A RIEMIE S E HEHRERRITI
Company, and the Guangzhou Branch of /8HRERRITRMNA HARIREMNST(( EEHR])EFZE
B /A &) (Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.*, “Shanghai H£ © A#MF - B SIH R E (K
Pudong”) for a term of two years, pursuant to which each of the B1&) @ () BN EHIKAE FEEESIE(LE
parties agreed (among other things): (i) to implement relevant works /0~ PUEH EE2EmE « RS EFEEE
and system design for innovative financing in the Sihuishi jade trading %X S OEB NS EE/TE S RIAIF A
industry with FH& T IR E K28 X B IR (R F 0 (Sihuishi Jewelry B TEEHIFERET ¢ (i) 2HUE ™ 2 F2577
and Jade Trade Management and Promotion Center), I g™ £88 ([RABEZE SV ERBRE  #ERRTE
P& (Sihuishi Jade Association®) and It R & FEFREER/ER R 5P LROEXRMAKERE - W EEPEHHEA
i (Beijing Jinmajia Equity Exchange Center*); (ii) to participate in 7 NARRK ZEF @ ¢ (iil) (REMNEHHR L 2=
the establishment of a jade assessment and valuation committee in =~ T2 7127 - EEMS@QEMNB2EE &R
Sihuishi, the selection of recognised industry experts to form an HERERBTFEFFARERBEEIRRG
expert pool, and the formation of an assessment group by random B2 AERM » WHHKE T AR ST
selection; (iii) to facilitate the promotion of the Sihuishi jade trading N (b) B HRBBEEIRHBEESEE L
industry, in particular (a) Guangzhou Junyan will be responsible for ~ Efk# » A NE Ll F A& AL ERZZEF
the development of the electronic platform for jade trading and 32L& MRS & K (iv) HEE PO & T U A AL
relevant facilities in respect of warehouse management services, and Pl &@HIER LT E X ERFHLNE
the introduction of the jewelry and jade exchange; and (b) Shanghai 7% °

Pudong will be responsible for the provision of relevant fund custody

and settlement services, and financing services for the qualified

trading clients on the aforementioned platform; and (iv) to support

the Sihuishi government on the establishment of guidance seed fund

for the Sihuishi jade trading industry.

* For identification purpose only 25
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Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress

EGEREBEREBEE 2T

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH XK EEHESEREBREE 2L
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS R

An analysis of the comparison between the business objectives WA TNAXRARAPA-ZT——F+_-_F 1
stated in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 December 2011 N BHZBKRER ([BRER]) AEEKEZ
(the “Prospectus”) and the actual business progress of the Group EAREER - FE—=F—H—HE-_ZT—=
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 is set out as follows: FTA=T—HHEZERFEBEZNL

B2 -
i) Expand the Group’s market presence in Hebei i) EAAXREBERTLE Z2H5H

Province B

Business objectives for the period from Actual business progress upon

1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 publication of this report

—E-=F-A-HEZE-—=F+-A=1+-—HHEZEH HBABER2ERERER

BE

— Commence business operation of Cangzhou City —  The Group is still applying for the

representative office registration certificate and
pending the approval from &M
M LEEAE B 1L)5 (Industry and
Information Technology of
Cangzhou City Bureau®).

— FEARMNMRRNEERICEED — AEENERBLREFAMTI
FMNERtREEEIZELE
=

—  Set up a representative office in Shijiazhuang City and/ — The Group will make further

or Qinghuangdao in Hebei Province arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the
future.

— WALEARRETR RFREERNIRENER — AEEBRRBGREBZERE
MBIELHE -

— Negotiate with banks to increase guarantee limit — Zhangjiakou City Commercial
Bank has increased 4t K B 47
R A7 BR 22 7 (Hebei Da Sheng
Guaranty Company Limited*,
“Hebei Da Sheng”) guarantee
limit by 8 times.

— HBEFRITEENIEMEREAE — REOMEERITE AL RE

THEERER 2R ([Tl XE&T])
ZHERBEIRSSME -

TERREREEARAR —T-=FFR 22



ss Objectives with Actual Business Progress

RIEEBRREBRRBERE 2 LB

— Conduct seminars to potential customers in Hebei — The Group conducted seminars
Province related to the financing of SMEs
in the province in the international
market on 21 May 2013. Partner
banks and corporate clients were
invited to the seminars. During the
seminars the investigative group
discussed clients’ financing
needs, criteria and ways to
amplify the guarantee amount.
— RALEEBEEREFPRBMAE — FREEEREAF/NEERBER
MEMER_T—=FRAA_-+
—HETHEE - R 2BHE
SERITREERPERF - &9
AENEEMRNERAITFRE
BR A RIMREERIESE -

i) Expand the Group’s market presence in Xiamen i) EAXEEREMTHRER

City and other cities surrounding Xiamen BET2ZTEE

Business objectives for the period from Actual business progress upon

1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 publication of this report

—E-=E-A-HEZE-=F+-A=1+—BHE%% HBABREFRCBEREBER

BE

—  Establish cooperation relationships with the Industrial — Aletter of industry intent has been
Bank Co., Ltd., Longhai Zhangzhou Commercial Bank signed with each of Industrial
and Ping An Bank Bank Co., Ltd. and Ping An Bank.

The Company is still waiting
for confirmation from the main
branches of the respective banks.

—  HEEXRIRT - EEEMNARRITRFREBITELAFRH — BHEBERRITMFLRITRRT
1% BERME - ARANEFHRN

FKIRTTARITHEL -

—  Set up a representative office in Longhai City, Fujian — The Group will make further
Province arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the

future.
— RREREESTRIRERNFE — AEEBRRBZREBIERE

MBIERHE
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Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress

EGEREBEREBEE 2T

i)

—  Set up a representative office in Fuzhou City or —

Quanzhou City

_ REMNTREMER SR E R ER

— Negotiate with banks to increase guarantee limit -

—  BEFITERLMEMBERER

—  Conduct seminars to potential customers in Xiamen —

City and Longhai City

— MEMTEESHEEEPERMTSE -

The Group will make further
arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the
future.
AEERKRBRABEBZERIS
MBERHE -

Ongoing negotiations were held
with China Merchants Bank.
BRI IRITIAAR -

Seminars were held for potential
customers in Xiamen City and
Longhai City on 18 March 2013.
RZE—=F=A+ N \BMEM
MBI 2 EER P R PHHT

S -

Expand the scope of the Group’s existing iii) %kﬁﬁzfﬁﬁﬁﬁé‘&ﬁﬁ

business and services

Business objectives for the period from

Actual business progress upon

1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 publication of this report
—E-=F-A-HEZE-—=F+-A=1+-—HHEZEK HBXABEER2ERXBER
BE

— Commence guarantee services for supply chain —

financing in Hebei Province and/or Xiamen City

—  POFAEE K 3K E P BR A £ RE 52 A A AR R AR TS -

— Commence project guarantee and procedural —

preservative guarantee businesses

— FIREREREFRREERED -

TERREREEARAR —T-=FFR

The supply chain financing service
of Hebei Da Sheng is still in the
stage of internal planning.

A6 K BRI 2 A e 5 7t 8 AR A% 4]
EABREIPZER -

The Group will make further
arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the
future.
REEKRBRABEB2ERIS
MBERHE -
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ess Objectives with Actual Business Progress

RIEEBRREBRRBERE 2 LB

—  Expand the Group’s services to Longhai City, Fujian
Province

- BERAKERGERREEEST

—  Expand the Group’s services to Fuzhou City or
Quanzhou City

— BRAEBREZEMMERMNT

Recruit additional expertise and allocate more

resources to improve credit risk

Business objectives for the period from

1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

T2 =f-A-HEZE-=ZHft+ZA=t-BHEZEK

B

—  Set up a training centre and risk management centre in
Xiamen City headquarter

—  REPITAAERLEIIT O &E R E RS D

—  Set up internal examination system for the staff

— REIRINIRERSL

— The Group will make further
arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the
future.

— AEEBRREBGREBZERE
MBERHE -

— The Group will make further
arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the
future.

— AEEBRRBREBIERE
EBIELHE -

BEESSERS T KAR
EZERAEFERRERE

Actual business progress upon
publication of this report

T ABER2EREBER

— The Group will make further
arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the
future.

— FEEBRBAEERZERIS
ABERHE -

— The Group will make further
arrangement based on the actual
situation of the business in the
future.

— FEEBRBAEERZERIS
MBIELHE -
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Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress

EGEREERXBEE 2 HE®

—  Send major staff for overseas training —  Hebei Da Sheng sent the project
manager of the institutional
financial guarantee department,
risk manager and/or business
staff to Baoding City in Hebei
Province, Shijiazhuang City and
Langfang City for training and
learning between April and June
2013.

— REEZETRRINETI — RIZE—=FOAGKERAHH
A L RERITE R AR E 14 1E
REBEIEE L2 - Ak £<<<EE&/
FEFBETEMILERED - A
KAt & BB L ﬁi%&%

%\_‘\ o
— All key personnel must possess at least a guarantee- —  Four key personnel of Hebei Da
industry-related certification Sheng have obtained Credit Risk
Management certification.
— MAEBEIMAZEIFAE RERTEMEBERE — JALRBRITOUEEABEEG

EERBERERE -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, aged 35, was appointed as an executive
Director, the chief executive officer and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chang is one
of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for the operation
and management of the Group. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor
degree in business management from the University of New
Brunswick of Canada in September 2000.

Mr. Chang is currently the executive director of Kong Sun Holdings
Limited (stock code: 295). He was an independent non-executive
director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444)
from June 2012 to September 2012. Mr. Chang has over 7 years of
experience in property development before he set up the Group with
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director and the vice chairman
of the Company. He joined his family business in 2000, served as a
general manager of & P97 B & A 7] (Xiamen Xiaoxiang Real
Estate Limited*) and director of Al dt FT R i F i EF G R A &)
(Hebei New East Asia Real Estate Development Company Limited®)
and A4 KB 1THE 4R A FR A A (Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company
Limited*), an indirect subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chang is also
the vice chairman of 5RZX A ™ L %8 & € (Zhangjiakou City
Chamber of Commerce*), the chairman of JREX A RMNE &
(Quanzhou City Chamber of Commerce of Zhangjiakou®), a
committee member of 5RER A & F B & € (Zhangjiakou City Youth
Federation*) and a member of the board of supervisors of 5RZ 1 T
¥ RITIRM AR A A (Zhangjiakou City Commercial Bank Co.,
Limited™).

Mr. Chang is the son of Mr. Chang Xi Min, a non-executive Director
of the Company and the chairman of the Company.

Mr. Pang Man Kin, Nixon, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director, the vice chairman, a member of the remuneration committee
and an authorized representative of the Company on 1 December
2011, and was subsequently appointed as a director and chief
executive officer of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 14 September
2012 and 20 November 2013 respectively. Mr. Pang is one of the
founders of the Group. He is responsible for overall strategy
formulation and planning of the Group. Mr. Pang was an executive
director of Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (stock
code: 353) from August 2005 to July 2007 and had participated in
various mergers and acquisitions and company restructuring.

S of Directors and Senior Management

ESENEREEAEBER

HITES

REEELE 35K R -T——FF+-A—
REZE/RNRRZMITESRITHAE -
NIRZEREGZKE - REERANEERE
AZ— FAEAKEZEEREE - KL
ER-_TETFNARGNEAH ARER
RBTHEES LB -

REERBTILERBRAF (RO
208) ZHMATEE - WEBR_ZE——FAZE
—Z— —F AL, A{ESincere Watch (Hong
Kong) Limited (BR5E « 444) 2 B3 3E%,
TES - REAEATESRARAREE
TXREERIAREE ZH] - REMERE
FHBEBELFLR BRZZEZTFMA
HERBREE WEFEPIRHEEHERRZ
BB Rt TR G EHERBE AR AR &
AL RERITERARER AR (KA 2 HEH
BRAR) ZEE - RAEANARROMIE
EWMEgrBIERE  RXOMRMNESZE
B RXOMBFHEECEZEGIKER
REOMEERTRODBEARIZEEES
KB

RAERANRIFITESREF R
HZRTF -

WXRBEE 455 R-E——F+-HA—
AEZEARARRICHITESREERE. ¥
MEEE 2K B REERRE - BRIDHIR
ZECZFAATHAR=ZE—=F+—H
—t+HEZTATREREBKREFRAR
(ARRzEE2ENBAR) 2EERITH
BE - - ZhEARRERBEACZ— - FAE
REBERERBEZHIFTRGTE - ZEETH
TEERFNAE_EE+F L ATRERE
BB AR AR (BRMDARSE : 353) 2#
TER, T2RLEHBERARELAEE -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEAEERE

Mr. Chen Xiao Li, aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director ~ BR/NRIE4E » 4358 R - ——F+_A—
and the compliance officer of the Company on 1 December 2011. BEZTARARZHITEERAETT -
Mr. Chen is responsible for overseeing the compliance issue and R4 B EEEARER A EMERRNIE
the internal control of the Group. He is also a member of the credit # - HINAAEB 7 ZEEEEEZEKE -
management standing committee of the Group. Mr. Chen obtained ~ FRZ&EAER— L NN\FE+ = AR KEL
a bachelor degree in laws from Hebei University in December 1998  2HEARIEK - YR —_TTHFE— A5
and a master degree in laws from Tsinghua University in January JEERESARETE46 - HATE 2 R ERE
2005. He is a practising lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Chen has been A » A B — T NFRARNEFIREA
providing legal services to the Group since 20086. ER -

Mr. Chang Xi Min, aged 66, was appointed as a non-executive REASKTE 665 M- T——F+_-A—
Director and the chairman of the Company on 1 December 2011. HEEZEAARARZIEFNITEEZHTIFE - K
Mr. Chang was the editor of Xiamen Daily from 1983 to 1989, during k&4 ER—AN=ZFZ2—AN\NFEEFIH
which he studied at The Open University of China (formerly known 2 #m#5 - HIR - ® B R E XA RKE
as “China Central Radio and TV University”) and graduated in (iR [RREFBEALE]) LA — LN\ E
September 1988. Mr. Chang was the economic consultant of LA R o RAAGERR ATBAT Z5H
Zhangjiakou Municipal Government, the secretary general of Xiamen — Eiff ~ EF T Tial (AR e) v EHBEEN
General Chamber of Commerce, a member of the Chinese People’s FEARBUAHBEHIILEZESGYEE
Political Consultative Conference of Hebei Province Committee of MBI ARBAHE ERZEROMELEZR
the PRC and a general member of Zhangjiakou Municipal Committee & 2R — NN+t FE - TT=FTHE
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He was &I EB AR A7 CRFE[BEBARE (121 &
an executive director of Fairyoung Holdings Limited (now known as R 2 A1) (AR5 : 231) ZHITEE - 3k
“Madex International (Holdings) Limited”) (stock code: 231) from 1997 4 iE —TE—FHRIFBERIREER
to 2003. Mr. Chang has also been the chairman of Liachai RFIZXE - BWAKRARZHITERHRITH
International Investment Limited since 2001. He is the father of Mr.  #2&ERENE L £ 2 R H -

Chang Hoi Nam, an executive Director and the chief executive officer

of the Company.

Mr. Chan Kai Wing, aged 53, was appointed as an independent  BR#EEE%E 53 R ZE——F+-FA—
non-executive Director, chairmen of the audit committee and the BEEZEFAARNATIZ B IEHNITES. =X
remuneration committee, and a member of the nomination committee ZE&@NFHMEES 2 TFEUNIREZEZES
of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor 2K 8 ° R AR — L /\/NF I A RN ZE
degree of economics from Macquarie University in Sydney, Australia EZEEIE K EBESLEEEBLE - F AR
in April 1986. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr. Chanis  JME:TAIAE 2 EFEE - FRAEEIRABE
currently the managing director and founder of Mandarin Capital BAMEARR A G2 EFALIENIRAIA -
Enterprise Limited, a company specialized in provision of financial ZAFIEFREABTBRTE Y T RILE
advisory, merger and acquisition and fund raising for both listed and AR TEEER ~ HHENREES - BINAE
private companies in Hong Kong and the PRC. He is also an " EGRAIZER AR AR (BRHKE -
independent non-executive director of China Conch Venture Holdings ~ 586) Z B JETTESE » MR — T IUFERR
Limited (stock code: 586). He founded Mandarin Capital Enterprise Y XEEATCEBR ARG NE M AZEITE
Limited in 2004 and started to provide financial advisory services to ~ (WNE AR 21T R ILE R ) 1RO 75 E
a wide range of industries, such as real estate development industry RS c BREEZ R —NANNFE2— NI —
and dairy industry. Mr. Chan worked in the audit department of Ernst TR E S 2 LK S5t BIEFTET 0 o
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of Directors and Senior Management

ESENEREEAEBER

& Young in Hong Kong from 1988 to 1991. He was also a director NG R — N —FE— LN AEREIF
and the financial controller of Shenzhen China Bicycle Company *®B17HE (£E) R AR Q7 (—ER S
(Holdings) Limited, a listed company in the PRC from 1991 t0 1999. M2 AR ETEERMHBEE -

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung, aged 48, was appointed as #IKERKE 485 W -_T——F+_-A—
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the nomination HBEZEAARRARZBIIFNTES. 1845
committee and a member of each of the audit committee and the ZEEZ /&, UNEZZEERFMEE
remuneration committee of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. & 7K B ° M4 REFRMNBE AL ZF|
Lam graduated from the Victoria University of Melbourne, Australia, 25 A2 EVSE¥ S22, TBBETERS
with a Bachelor of Business Degree majoring in banking and finance. &l o /&% INEX/S N2 & 18 K EfE 4 Rh 2218
He also earned a Master Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie 27 - M4 IR AEARBEE AR QA
University of Australia. Mr. Lam is currently an executive director of (B3 X5% : 8272) 2 #iTE S (IR —_T—
Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272) (He Z=FVPA++HBEZARZBYIEHITES
re-designated from the independent non-executive director of that  FAEAHITESE) - MAELRA()FAREE
company to the executive director from 17 April 2013). Mr. Lam is AR R A (XD - 145) + K (i)iEiALE
an independent non-executive director of (i) The Hong Kong Building ~ SRBE1ZRR AR A & (AR5 5% : 8260) 2 Bz
and Loan Agency Limited (stock code: 145); and (i) Zebra Strategic  JFHTTEE - FEOHIR _ZZN\FAE-
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8260). He was an independent non- ZZEHEXFEFEAYREFARF AR
executive director of (i) China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology A& (BH AR5 : 8158) (R —ZEZENFE+
Limited (stock code: 8158) from June 2008 to June 2009; (i) China —AZ-_ZTTZNFNATFREEKRESERR
Railway Logistics Limited (stock code: 8089) from December 2008 A &) (B K5 : 8089) : K(ii)fd —ZZ N\
to June 2009; and (i) China Oriental Culture Group Limited (stock F—AZ=-ZF—ZFH ATHBEH L&
code: 2371) from January 2008 to September 2010. He resigned as  BAR A F] (AR5 + 2371) 2B IEHTT
the deputy chief executive officer of China Eco-Farming Limited (stock Z%E - R -Z— =4 A+t HE TS

code: 8166) on 17 April 2013. BEELEER AT (RO : 8166) 2 &I7T
B o

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, aged 46, was appointed as an independent JEZEE%E @ 465 W - T——&F+-A—
non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee of the HEZRTARARZIBIIFNTEELEX
Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chow obtained a master degree ZE&MKE - AEER ST hE+ AES
in professional accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic EHFABILAZHESHETEM o FAKE
University in October 2009. He is a fellow member of The Association 4 AR EHMAE v E XS ENEE S
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of The Hong A2 EFEE - FAAER AREEEK
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is currently  E& R A& (1D RIR © 508) 2 B IEHTT
an independent non-executive director of Dingyi Group Investment E%E - FER T N\F—AEZ T ——F
Limited (stock code: 508). He was an independent non-executive T AEFEEFX{bEBBRE Q7 (BMH A
director of China Oriental Culture Group Limited (stock code: 2371) 5% : 2371) Z BN IEEITE S B LT
from January 2008 to May 2011 and the chief financial officer of R-ZEENF-AZ-"T——F+- AHE
Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272) from ZFEASBEBE AR A A (RHHREE : 8272) 2
February 2008 to December 2012. B TS 4B L o

29 China Assurance Finance Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEAEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREERE

Mr. Li Bai Xiang, aged 68, joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.  ZH® %4 @ 685 R-ZZTAFE+— AN
Li is currently the chief risk control officer of the Group, responsible ~ AZKREE - 44 AKRER 2 EFERKE
for new guarantee product development and business expansion 2E @ BEFERERZHE LR EHERE
strategy formulation. He is also the supply chain finance specialist B2 #l5] - IR ATESRHERREEE R
of China Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned & (—REIAQARIEZEE2EH A 2HERA)
subsidiary of the Company. He graduated from the radio and ZHEEREHER - FR— A AANFLAR
automatic control system faculty of Huanan Polytechnic majoring in /) T ¥ 20 4R E B 5 ShifH| ZRHKE T
water acoustics engineering in July 1969. Mr. Li is currently a f2H¥EE - ZHLBWAPRYREE IR
consultant of the F B ¥R £&E HR#EF L (China Logistics #ERLZEM B—NQWNZTEFE2-_FTEH
Productivity Promotion Centre*). From 1990 to 2005, he was the 4 > G EHEYEEER N QT2 BK
general manager of China National Materials Storage and £ ZARA—BRELEZHNBAR  5—
Transportation Guangzhou Corp, a subsidiary of a state-owned AN NFEFE AZESREIEETTDER
enterprise which is engaged in securitisation management of pledged EEZREERE - Hifd, TR ELHODRE
assets for various financial institutions in the PRC since 1999. During 2N IB B ERER  M)iSE 8IS E 2 Wik
the period, Mr. Li conducted extensive researches on and has gained RN GREBEEEZHFLETRAAFTIL
extensive experience in (i) logistics management and project 27 %= &8 -

guarantee businesses; and (ii) securitisation of relevant assets along

the chain of logistics management for financial investments.

Furthermore, Mr. Li has been conducting researches on mixed It » A —BEHR AT ABIELEE] K&
application of “supply chain” and “capital chain application”. He also  [EA§EER | 2 EAER - HMMEXRZ R
published various academic articles relating to “logistics bank and R [ R1T MEREE | 2 25w B =
risk management”. In 2007, as the expert of the logistic productivity ZZ+F#  {EATPBRMREENTFLER
center in the PRC and the editor of the (¥R 1l7) (Logistics RLMRFMNZHE, THEEDKZ N2 H
Technology*), Mr. Li has participated in examination and approval of HFEZER NN EE B3 2 EYRAEH
the national standards which are issued by the National Development BB RIZHE 2 FF MiFRB (R R imiT%E
and Reform Commission of the PRC, such as (¥ EEEPME FEFZWIREERTFPRE R HRE) -
[EF {547 40) (Assessment on the Satisfactory Level of the Logistic (B EDHRBHEEIRER) - R E 2788
Enterprises®), {8 87 & EE I B 5K) (Management Requirement  BAINE) o

of the Automatic Sorting Facilities*) and <¥1;75 7 2 78R8 All) (General

Specification for Logistics Quantitative Forecast®) of the logistics

industry standard in the PRC.

Mr. He Jian Han, aged 36, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr. Heis  fAI8IE &4 © 365 R - ——FMAINA
currently the manager of the Group and responsible for the risk control ~ N - AL AR AARER 2 K32 - BFAX
of the Group. He is also a member of the risk control committee of 5B Z BB EE o HINAAR AAREILER
the Company. Mr. He obtained a master degree in business EB&ZKE - AR T —ZFEBER
administration from Xiamen University in 2010. He worked in Xiamen A2 THEEB 240 o Y ERAFET
branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. ERITEPITM DT -
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Mr. An Xiaochun, aged 48, joined the Group in September 2006. ZREEHEA @ 485 RS FNLAMA
Mr. An is currently the chief business supervisor of Hebei Da Sheng, A& Lo 4R AL RETT (AAFZ
an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and is responsible for market MEEMBAR) 2 ZKEEREEMHH
development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects. He %% $4& N¥EER 2 MFHE - R —N
graduated from Hebei Radio and TV University with a diploma in ~ NA\F+ AT EBERASHEEHHE
financial accounting in July 1988. Mr. An also graduated from Central ¥R o &4 IR — WL - FE+ = A
Party School of the Communist Party of China majoring in HARERKEBREEZEEE - 4N HR
management in party administration in December 1992. Furthermore, —Z——4F= A% MiBiB/5HE A BHEZH
he completed and passed an advanced-level course in risk B EfT8R 2 BB E LM ERE S RHE
investment and corporate finance organized by the Continuing ¥

Education Department of Tsinghua University in March 2011.

Mr. Chen Yi Ping, aged 51, joined the Group in November 2009. BRESEL4L » 5158 ' R T hFE+— AN
Mr. Chen is currently the chief business supervisor of Xiamen Da  AARNEE o R ER BBEFIAEIT (AAQF
Sheng, an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and is responsible for 7 M B A R)) 2 #5428 - BEHHH
market development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects. 2%  $4& M ¥EER 2 MFHE - R —N
He obtained a diploma in economic from Xiamen University in June  APIF /N AESBEPFIREELEEEUR -
1984.

Mr. Xu Gao Sen, aged 36, joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.  §F&& %4 @ 365 R-ZZThF+— AN
Xu is currently the chief financial controller of the Group. He obtained ~ AZNEE - Fr AR ARNER 2 & F 54
a graduation certificate in construction finance accounting from 48 25 - iR — AN\ F L AESREEEES S
EEESEHERER (Fujian Construction Vocational School®) in July HERIBRKEZEAPBESTEEEE - IALE
1998. Before joining the Group, Mr. Xu worked as the accounts E#] - FcE CREPITEEEMERZEE 2
manager of a property developer in Xiamen City for 5 years. GEHCIBERSF -

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 34, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. Zhang RZE%4E © 3455 0 R \F+ AMAK
is currently the marketing manager of the Group and is responsible (8 - SR A ARER 2 SiH&KIE - B85
for marketing affairs of the Group. He has more than three years of ~AREE 2 LiEEHK - FNSEBEEER=
experience in marketing area. Mr. Zhang obtained a diploma in  FE2F&LE - (REER T N\F— KRS
construction engineering and pricing management from Hebei JAdtERTREEREATIREFEEEUR
Institute of Architecture Civil Engineering in January 2008.
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Mr. Zhang Jun Hong, aged 48, joined the Group in November 2013.  REALLLE - 485 N-_ZE—=F+—AM
He is currently a director and joint chief executive officer of China AR%EE - RAEAIRAFTREHEFILE R
Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned RAR (KRR 2 EEZEHEBAR) 2 & F 3R
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from the BEEHITE - R AN\ ASNFEEFHEAR
Department of Economics, Renmin University of China in 1986  AZ4& & Xt RS HEEE R o ff BHLE
majoring in world economics. Mr. Zhang had previously worked for — FRIMNEE IR FBER o & IR LERE A A RHL
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. Mr. Zhang  FIZ#t & Z & REIMT - ERETRODTT
had also previously served as the head of &8 2 & & (Economic 1TRENE + RELBREBREBEHEES -
and Trade Development Department*) of FFBI A B #4E (China  SRAEETIAEFISRBHE Z HBIA TR -
Talent Technology Development Agency®), the assistant to president

of The Chinese Mercantile Bank Shekou Branch, and the associate

director of Cathay International Limited. Mr. Zhang is the founder

and shareholder of Heli Financial Technology.

Mr. Chan Kim Leung, aged 49, joined the Group in November 2013.  BR&8IBRELE @ 4955  R—Z—=F+— AN
He is currently a director and head of business development of China  AAR%E - RAELRAFREMEFILE R
Assets Group Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned RAF (KRG ZEEMBAR) v EERE
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chan obtained the bachelor degree &3 R AREL « RN — N N\N\FEBEBH X
of business administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong KBTI RHEEE4EG - HIN - TZ —F
in 1988. He further obtained the postgraduate diploma in English 15 The Manchester Metropolitan University
and Hong Kong law from The Manchester Metropolitan University in -~ 3EB0 K &8 AR 75 4 XUR © FRot A S (T8
2002. Mr. Chan had previously worked for The Wharf (Holdings) RhBEEREBAERARLEEINELTARA
Limited and Caltex Oil Hong Kong Limited. He had also previously &) ° NS TR E S BURFBIE T - UK
served as an administrative officer of the Hong Kong Government, TEEARAREERLAE2EHFE - HE
and the chief officer for directors’ office of UDL Management Limited. HLE2&E - ER&H NEK -

He has extensive experience in the fields of investment, business

operation and networking.

Top Wisdom Enterprise Limited, a private company owned by Mr.  BRA&EA Z AR B EHEEAR AN —-=
Chan, was appointed to provide consultancy services to the Group —=FRA—HDEZT  AREBREE
on 1 May 2013. I ARTS -

Mr. Lin Zhao Qing, aged 51, joined the Group in November 2013.  #EB&E XL 51 R-Z—=F+— A
He is currently the executive officer of China Assets Group Investment  AR%EE - MAELRAFREMEFILE SR
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. R A& (KA R Z MEMBAR) 2 1TH 4
Lin graduated from 1t A 42 E B T K2 (Beijing Vocational & ° R — AN\ AFEIL RALEERME T A
University of Cable Power Plant*) with telephone automatic switching ZEBFEEHTHEERYE - HHEEKSEEM
profession in 1985. Mr. Lin has extensive experience and professional ~ %B18, v £ = &5 &k B2 AN -

knowledge in the operation of power plant.
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Mr. Chen Gang, aged 38, joined the Group in November 2013. He
is currently the chief operating officer of China Assets Group
Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Chen obtained the master degree in sociology from
the Peking University in 2001. He has extensive experience in the
field of operation management.

Mr. Sun Xiao Ping, aged 47, joined the Group in November 2013.
He is currently the chief technology officer of China Assets Group
Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Sun obtained the master degree in computer science
and technology from Xidian University in 2007. He has extensive
professional techniques and experience in electronic system and
software engineering.

* For identification purpose only

BREI %4 - 385 N-BE—=F+—AMA
REE - REERATFECHERIRESR
RE(ARRIZEENBRAR) 2EREE
B BRIET—FEBILRASHEENE
T - FHRELEENEEETELR -

BAPFPRE 475 R-F—=F+—Am
AREE - ZELBRBTEEREBRES
[RATF (AREZEEHIERR) 2 BRF M
B BN -_EELFREBALEFHERAS
SHEEH BRI E R 2R AR -
REALENEFRARLRBMTIREZERR
IPSEES 3

“EHES
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2012 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing
corporate credit guarantee services, performance guarantee services
and the relevant consultancy services to small and medium
enterprises in Hebei Province and Xiamen Province of the PRC.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 143.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013. (2012: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS

As part of the preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company issued 150,000,000 new
shares and alloted 235,000,000 existing shares being offered for
sale by way of placing (the “Placing”), a capitalization issue of
1,389,980,000 shares and a loan capitalisation issue of 10,000
shares. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the
150,000,000 new shares were issued at par value of HK$0.01 each.
The net proceeds received by the Company from the issuance of
new shares under the Placing were approximately HK$25.7 million
(approximately RMB21 million). As disclosed in the Prospectus, the
Directors intended to use all net proceeds from the Placing received
by the Company for payment of the capital commitments of the Group
which fall due in or around December 2012 in relation to the purchase
of properties and construction of its the Hebei Property and Aurora
Liaohai. Details of the plan for the use of proceeds from the Placing
are set out in the section headed “Reasons for the Placing and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As at the date of this report, the net
proceeds have been fully utilised as intended.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB173.3 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last four financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and
the Prospectus, is set out on page 5. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements in this report.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s major
customers are set out below:

Report of the Directors

BE > BESLEAQAZ
tﬁ%#

HE - T—=F+_A=+—HIEFE &K
&7jﬁEHWE 7%%%E~m%ﬁﬁ
B ARARFZ EHE

FEEF

E_T+=FT_A=T—HLEFE &
SEZIERP:

Percentage of total sales

HRMEEERESL
Sales HEMH
— the largest customer BAEP 3.22%
— the five largest customers combined AREFPEH 13.42%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2013 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xiao Li

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Xi Min (Chairman)

BmEE . G5 HRAREARR (GhE
A A B BT R A IBIB5%) A
B R AT S REA S -

=

RBE-Z—=F+-RA=+—HILFER
REEABERREEZESNT ¢

HITES :
R (FTHER)
X BRE (AIER)

BRNR S
FHITES :

SRPuEREE (Z/E)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Wing
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

In accordance with articles 84 of the Articles, Mr. Chang Hoi Nam,
Mr. Pang Man Kin, Nixon and Mr. Chow Shiu Ki will retire as Directors
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations from each
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year and all independent non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 27 to 33 of this report

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years from 6 January
2012 (renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the service
agreement). Each of the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term with effect from 1 December 2013 until 30
November 2014. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant
to the Articles.
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No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above and in note 30 to the financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, and the
time devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The
Directors may also receive options to be granted under a share option
scheme. The Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme. The details of the share option scheme are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors
of listed issuer as referred to in rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules
(the “Required Standard of Dealings”) were as follows:
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39

(a) Long positions in the ordinary Shares of HK$0.01
each (the “Shares”) and the underlying Shares

Number of Shares

Report of the Directors

(a) BREE0OE T Z2EER
(&) KRR 2R

Shares in issue as at 31 December 2013.

RH#E
Total Number Approximate
Equity of Shares and percentage
Name of Personal Corporate Derivatives underlying of the issued
Director Interest Interest (share options) Shares share capital
BASTETA REORER (HERTRE
Exps 18 A EEER (BB E) ROEY ZBNEIHL
(Note 2) (Note 2)
(FH7E2) (Pf5E2)
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam — 1,024,716,000 - 1,024,716,000 64.63%
(“Mr. Chang”) (Note 1)
wel kA ([REE]) (P5E1)
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon 17,500,000 1,024,716,000 — 1,042,216,000 65.74%
(“Mr. Pang”) (Note 1)
TXEBEE([HEE]) (P5E1)
Mr. Chen Xiao Li — - 15,400,000 15,400,000 0.97%
(“Mr. Chen”)
BR/NFISE A (TBREHE])
Notes: B 5E
These Shares were registered in the name of Team King, which 1. ZERGUAMIZBRZRL  Z2a95H
was legally and beneficially owned as to 92.69% by Capital Gain HEEREERERA AT (RE]) &%
Investments Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”) and 7.31% by Best K E =¥ 92.69% K& iBest Access
Access Holdings Group Limited (“Best Access”). Capital Gain was Holdings Group Limited ([Best
legally and beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by Access|) 67X R BEmBERT7.31%  E
Mr. Chang. Best Access was legally and beneficially owned by Dr. ENRIREAEEEREREES1%R
Ma Chung Wo Cameron (“Dr. Ma”). Under the SFO, each of Mr. RREEEEREREB49% © Best
Pang and Mr. Chang was deemed to be interested in the Shares AccessHIFSHMEE ([BBE &ER
held by Team King by virtue of Team King being controlled by Mr. BEnEE - REFHERBAERN - BR
Pang and Mr. Chang through Capital Gain. Dr. Ma was deemed to HEZEERRLERBEEZTS - i)
be interested in the Shares held by Team King by virtue of Team THRERRAEFR BRI R B R
King being controlled by Dr. Ma through Best Access. DHREEER  EAMHSFSEL®RB
Best AccesstE il - #UB B AWK AR
N AERMD P EAER o
The interests in the share options (being regarded as unlisted 2. EBRECEZ (REFLTEERIKRR
physically settled equity derivatives) are detailed under the paragraph AOTHEEm) RS [RERERT 8] —
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” in this report. BRMEF o
The percentage was calculated on the basis of 1,585,400,000 3. HBEOWNER-ZE—=F+"A=+

—B B %17k /mEE 1,585,400,000
BAEETE -
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(b) Long positions in the shares of associated (b) RHEEZERGD 2HF &

corporation
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shares held interest in
Name of associated in associated associated
Director corporation Capacity corporation corporation
Fris i £ E HHEBEE RS
EEpgg HHLE AR 227 BB E ZBRNEIH
Mr. Chang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 9,269 92.69%
REAE A (i at) corporation
TEEEE S
Mr. Pang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 9,269 92.69%
ZhE A (B sE) corporation
g N
Note:  Team King was legally and beneficially owned as to 92.69% by Mzx: AESRNBEEEERE=ES
Capital Gain and as to 7.31% by Best Access. Capital Gain was 92.69% X F1Best Access & /A M B i
legally and beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% HET31% - BlEDRIAERESR
by Mr. Chang. EREBERHESTI%RARLESE
REZHEE49% -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of BREXEREN RZTE—=F+=
the Directors or the Chief Executives had any interests or short A=+—H #EEsdm51THA
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of BRAR AR EMAEEERE (X RE
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning £ NEFERBIEXVEL) 2 Ik - 1B
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to Mk EEETHEEEREBEES AT
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified &1 B 35216 ER BN RZ IR BIFT 38 2 B 5D
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the iz ERmIARE  KABRBERZ Y
Required Standard of Dealings. SPIZEM S AR F) MR P 2 (Al

3L AN
HIORE °
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL X2 &) 2  E B R AR &
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES HHER O 2HEER XA

AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to the Directors and W—-—ZE—=%+—-"A=+—H BEZEEKLE
the Chief Executives and based on the public records filed on the mﬁﬁ/\/g\)ﬁﬁﬁu WARBIEBE S P8 Ub I B ~
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the Company, ARk RAATFEAE L BREEN S
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations (other =77 A B4 + T A T 55EB AR5 sk 48
than the Directors and the Chief Executives) in the Shares or g5 B IR 15 555 & B E (&) 553361538
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept  F /B 4EN IR LM X R AR -

under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Approximate

Name of percentage
Substantial Total number of issued
Shareholder Capacity of Shares share capital
HEBITRAE
FTERRER 56 % 17 48 81 ZEHBE D
(Note 3)
(P 5E3)
Team King Beneficial owner 1,024,716,000 (L) 64.63
7 1 EnfEEA
Capital Gain Through a controlled corporation 1,024,716,000 (L) 64.63
Y REHEEER (Note 1)
GERD,
Best Access Through a controlled corporation 1,024,716,000 (L) 64.63
Best Access 1) E R (Note 1)
(BrzE1)
Dr. Ma Through a controlled corporation 1,024,716,000 (L) 64.63
5EBA YRS AE R (Note 1)
(BtzE1)
Joyful Promote Beneficial owner 80,284,000 (L) 5.06
BE EnREBA 50,000,000 (S) 3.15
Mr. So Chi Ming Through a controlled corporation 80,284,000 (L) 5.06
(“Mr. So”) (Note 2)
HERLE ([HEE]) XEHZEER (FrzE2)
50,000,000 (S) 3.15
(Note 2)
(FrzE2)
(L) denotes long position (L) RRLHE
(S) denotes short position (S) XFTRAKE
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Notes: B 5

1. These Shares were registered in the name of Team King, which was legally 1.  ZERMHUAIELEEL LA ARD A HES
and beneficially owned as to 92.69% by Capital Gain and 7.31% by Best BIENE=EIEF2.69% M FBest Access& iE
Access. Capital Gain was legally and beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. EE%E?.& % o BEARATEEEER
Pang and 49% by Mr. Chang. Best Access was legally and beneficially BEnEE1 % RNEREESEZERIER49% °
owned by Dr. Ma. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang was Best AccessH % REAGEERHER - BRIEE
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Team King by virtue of FREEGES - BRI HZEERREERA
Team King being controlled by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang through Capital EEE %i&@ﬁf‘ii?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ"f‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁ
Gain. Dr. Ma was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Team BERGTHEEZ RANBEFTELRA
King by virtue of Team King being controlled by Dr. Ma through Best Best AccesstZE il #UE B A AR AROREFT
Access. FAEROTAHEE#Em

2. These Shares were registered in the name of Joyful Promote which was 2. #ZEWRMHUBEREERL  ABLLEAELE
legally and beneficially owned by Mr. So. Under the SFO, Mr. So was W E - BEBEESREERD - HFEEERA
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Joyful Promote. REEBREZROPERREZ

3. The percentage was calculated on the basis of 1,585,400,000 Shares in 3. AN NER - Z—=F+-"A=+—H2~
issue as at 31 December 2013. 2 #1717 8 B 1,585,400,000% & E %5t

s
= o
7

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, there was no  Fr EXIFFEEIN W -_TE—=F+_HA=+
person or corporation (other than the Directors and the Chief —H - B &5 KA EKEHIEI36(E © AR
Executives) who had any interest or short position in the Shares or ~ &IZBF &M ELM - BEA LIEE (BE
underlying Shares as recorded in the register of interests required to % &= 1T A B 4N FRIR 7 sk 48 B8 A% 1n

be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO. HEERIKE

OTHER INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UDNER THE SFO %ﬁ %Iﬁé EgHTEMET

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there Bk E X EEIN - IBEEEFTAN - BEEE A
was no other person who had interest or short position in the Shares TR RABERMO T HEEREES RS
and underlying Shares that is discloseable under section 336 of the 1§/ 53361578 T IH & 2 HEZS AR ©
SFO.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION” and “SHARE OPTION SCHEME” in this report, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2013 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2013 had the Directors and the Chief Executives (including
their spouses and children under 18 years of age) any interest in, or
been granted, or exercised any rights to subscribe for the Shares
(or warrants or debentures, if applicable) and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Report of the Directors
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BT E

ARRRR-T——F+ - A BIRABBERE
R B ERSRRBREZEDNS
R AR BB B AT &) 2 IRBUR R R BB A 1D 2 B
BETAEBRAL (EELBRESE) - F
RREHAREEFMER R BB E R - %
BREAEANEE—_ZT—=Ft+t-A=1+—
BIEFERA—BEAMRER -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 1 December
2011 whereby the Board was authorized, at its absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant
options to the eligible persons (as defined in the Share Option
Scheme) to subscribe for the Shares as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will be
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from the
Listing Date. Movements relating to the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2013 were as follows:

Number of share options
EREHA
Name or At At
category of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December
participants  Date of grant 2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2013 Exercise period  Exercise price
ERALA R=%-Z% BE#/  R-E-ZF
SR RILEE -A-8 ERA B B%% tZA=t-A it %@
HKS$
AT
Director
gz
Mr. Chen 23 March 2012 15,400,000 - - - 15,400,000 23 March 2012 to 0.63
R4 3% 22 March 2015
ZRZt=H “E-CE
=RZt=HZ
_T-1%
“AZtZH
Other
Participants 23 March 2012 77,000,000 - 7,000,000 - 70,000,000 23 March 2012 to 0.63
HARA  -T--% 22 March 2015
ZAZ+=H Ik Sk 3
ZA=t+=HZ
“3-1F
EZACTCE
21 May 2013 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 1 May 2014 to 1.19
“%-=F 30 April 2015
ERE-t-8 “E3-mE
nA-A%
“3-1F
MA=+H
21 May 2013 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 1 May 2015 to 1.19
“E-cf 30 April 2016
ﬁﬂ :+ - E! :g—ﬁﬁ
nA-A%
ZE3-5F
MA=+H
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Number of share options
ERESR

Name or At At

category of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December

participants  Date of grant 2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2013 Exercise period  Exercise price

AEAES H-g-Z% BE#/  R-E-ZF

R4R REAH -A-H BRI EffE B%¥ tZR=t-H s L3
HKS$
i

Other
Participants 20 November 2013 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 1 November 2014 1.63
(Continued)  —E—=% to 31 October 2015
HbERAE) +-A=fH “5-RF
t-5-8%
“I-1%
tA=t-7
20 November 2013 - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 1 November 2015 1.63
“E-CF to 31 October 2016
+-A-1H “E-1F
N
ZE-rF

A1

Continuous
Contract
Employees 23 March 2012 53,400,000 - 35,400,000 18,000,000 23 March 2012 to 0.63
EftGHEE T 22 March 2015
=A=t=H -
ZA-t=B%
“5-1f
=R=tZH
23 March 2012 600,000 - - 200,000 400,000 7 July 2012 1o 0.63
-5k 6 July 2015
=A-1=H —3-2f
tAtHE
“E-1f
tARA

23 March 2012 600,000 - - 200,000 400000 1 August 2012 to 0.63
Sy 31 August 2015
ZA-1=H “E--F%
N\A—BZ
“E-REF
N\E=1+-8

21 May 2013 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 1 May 2014 to 1.19
Bz 30 Apri 2015
RA-t-A “E-RE
LR-HZE
“E-1%
MA=1H
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Number of share options
ERESR
Name or At At
category of 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December
participants  Date of grant 2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2013 Exercise period  Exercise price
REALE R-E-Zf gi#/ RZB-=F
R4R REAH -B-H BRI [Bifd B%¥ tZR=t-H L &
HKS
i
Continuous
Contract 21 May 2013 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 1 May 2015 to 119
Employees —Z—=F 30 April 2016
(Continued) il “Z-1f
EEtLNES hf-AZ
(&) N2
MA=+H
20 November 2013 - 18,500,000 - - 18,500,000 1 November 2014 to 1.63
“E-= 31 October 2015
t-A=tH ZE-RF
t-f-BZ
“E-nfF
tA=t-E
20 November 2013 - 18,500,000 - - 18,500,000 1 November 2015 to 1.63
—Z-= 31 October 2016
+-fA-+H “Z-1f
T-R- Ei
ZEN
tA=t+- E
Total 147,000,000 55,000,000 42,400,000 400,000 159,200,000
@it

The share option scheme enables the Company to grant options to ~ BERXAE T 2MFE A A B 7] [ A A &) s A& BT
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member  fA]pk 8 Z (E R 2B ES (A EKRBE
of the Group (the “Eligible Participant’) as incentives or rewards &) B HERE - (EARSYAEEFER
for their contributions to the Group, the Company conditionally Bt~ #BEisi@% - ARFHR T ——F+—
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 1 December A — B EEFRNERETE - Bt - T5
2011 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion & EREIZFE 2 2HEBIE - KBERET
and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe 2l 7 i§513% H 7] SR AR 5 i D 2 BE A HE T
for the Shares of the Company to the Eligible Participant. The Scheme A& &1&2 8% o Z:tE|h L Hh B HE +F 5
will be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from  R—EH B ERK o

the Listing Date.
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As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 154,000,000 Shares and represents 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for Shares granted
pursuant to the Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible Person shall
pay HK$ 1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.
The Option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days
from the date on which the Option is granted. The subscription price
for the Shares subject to Options will be a price determined by the
Board and notified to each participant and shall be the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Options, which
must be a day on which trading of Shares take place on the Stock
Exchange (the “Trading Day”); (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 Trading Days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the Options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. For the purpose
of calculating the subscription price, in the event that on the date of
grant, the Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange for less
than 5 Trading Days, the issue price shall be used as the closing
price for any Trading Day falling within the period before the Listing
Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue from the Listing Date. The Company may at any
time refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and
issue of a circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under all
the share option schemes of the Company does not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Since the adoption of the Scheme, no share option has been granted
by the Company.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2013, the Group has entered into the following transaction with
the following party, which is a connected person of the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The following transaction
constitutes a continuing connected transaction which is exempt from
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Tenancy agreements in relation to the Xiamen office

On 2 August 2009, Xiamen Da Sheng as tenant and Ms. Ma Lee
Kwan (“Ms. Ma”) as landlord entered into a tenancy agreement in
respect of a property (the “Property”) situated at Suites 23B and
23C, Office Tower, Zhongxin Huiyang Building, No. 59 Hubing Road
North, Xiamen, the PRC with an area of approximately 200 sg. m.
for a term of three years commenced on 8 September 2009 and
expired on 7 September 2012. The annual rental payable by the
Group for the Property is approximately RMB84,000. On
7 September 2012, Xiamen Da Sheng and Ms. Ma has renewed the
term of the tenancy agreement in respect of the Property for another
three years commenced from 8 September 2012 and expiring on
7 September 2015 at the same annual rental amount of approximately
RMB84,000. The Property is currently being used by the Group as
its Xiamen office.

As Ms. Ma is the mother of Mr. Chang Hoi Nam and the wife of Mr.
Chang Xi Min, she is a connected person of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Given that the rental payable by the Group in respect of the Property
is comparable and in line with prevailing market rates, the Group will
continue to lease the Property from Ms. Ma until completion of
construction of its Xiamen headquarter.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, substantial shareholders nor any of their
respective associates is a director or a shareholder of any business
apart from the business of the Group which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, except for the compliance adviser
agreement dated 10 July 2013 entered into between the Company
and First Shanghai Capital Limited (“First Shanghai”), neither First
Shanghai (the compliance adviser of the Company), nor any of its
directors, employees or associates had any interests in the securities
of the Company or any other companies of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities) pursuant to rule
B6A.32 of GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with Rule 18.08B of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages
50 to 62 in this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 have been audited by the Company’s auditors,
BDO Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the AGM. The Company has not changed its
external auditors since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
China Assurance Finance Group Limited
Pang Man Kin Nixon
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2014
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and
enhance its corporate value. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code and Report”) in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that the Company had
been in compliance with the CG Code and Report throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The
Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiries of the
Directors, all the Directors have complied with the Required Standard
of Dealings throughout the year ended 31 December 2013 and up
to the date of this report.

Corporate Governance Report
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven Directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

and Vice Chairman
Executive Director
Non-executive Director

and Chairman of the Board
Independent non-executive

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon

Mr. Chen Xiao Li
Mr. Chang Xi Min

Mr. Chan Kai Wing

Director

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung Independent non-executive
Director

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki Independent non-executive
Director

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this report.

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are published
at the GEM website and the Company’s website (www.cafgroup.hk).

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve quarterly, interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. The Board held 29 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2013. Individual attendance records of each Director at
the respective Board and committee meetings are set out in the
table on page 58 of this report.
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Notices with agenda of the Board meeting are duly given to each
Director. Minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the Company
Secretary and is open for inspection by any Directors.

If a Director has an interest in the resolutions to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the Board
will ensure the resolutions will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than written resolutions and the board will also ensure
that an adequate number of independent non-executive Directors
are involved in the consideration of the relevant resolutions.
Independent non-executive Directors are encouraged to take an
active role in Board meetings.

The Board and the Management of the Company

The Board and the management of the Company (the
“Management”) work together toward synergy in order to strive for
excellent performance of the Company. The Company is governed
by the Board, which is responsible for overseeing the overall strategy
and development of the Company, as well as monitoring the internal
control policies and evaluating the financial performance of the Group.
The Board sets the overall strategies and directions for the Group
with a view to developing its business and enhancing the
shareholders’ value. The day to day management, administration,
operation of the Group and adoption of the Company’s strategies
and polices are delegated to the Management. The clear
responsibilities division between the Board and the Management
ensured the power and authority are balanced and not concentrated
in any one individual.

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors which representing more than one-third of the
Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Independent non-executive Directors, together with
the executive Directors, ensure that the Board prepares its financial
and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with the relevant
standards. The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their independence is in compliance the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Relationships between the Board

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, is the son of Mr. Chang Xi Min, a non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the Board. Save for the
aforesaid, none of the Directors related to one another.

Continuous Professional Development of the Directors

Each Director receives comprehensive and formal induction and
orientation to ensure he/she adequately understand the operations
and business of the Group. The Company also provided detailed
director’s responsibilities and obligations statement pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules for the Director to review and study. In addition,
materials in relation to regularly update on latest development in
relation to the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable regulatory
requirements and the Group’s business and governance policies (the
“Reading Materials in relation to Continuous Professional
Developments”) were circulated to the Directors. Continuing
briefings and seminars for the directors will be arranged as necessary.
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills periodically.

During the year ended 31 December 2013 the Directors participated
in the continuous professional developments in the following manner:

Reading Materials in
relation to Continuous
Professional Developments

Corporate Governance Report

CREARE

ESEACEE

RAPHITESRITBARERIBE LRI
HWITESREFQ IR RAKTEZRT -
B LatESN  EF B EELMBERE -

EECRHESERER

REZCLRIEEMERZDHHES| - &
PRI IERE T AR B 2 298 MRS - AT
THZRBIER EHRARHFAEEEER
&% HEZERLME - B CRES
BRARAERETRA - HMEREER
ERAEEERHLEEBRRENERZED
FHEN ((ARBEERBRZME]) - =
BHBRNEXRERNETERSMESEM -
EREBR2EFBEEXRR  THEIK
5B E AN B M RE o

BE_ZT—=F+"_F=+—HILFE &
E2ATIEEAREEXERZER

Attending seminars/
courses/conferences

in relation to Continuous
Professional Developments

Name MEERFESEER HEARGEEXRREY
#®H 2R BHE  RE/ &R
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam R BEE 0

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon TNBEE 0

Mr. Chen Xiao Li RN A O

Non-executive Directors FHITEE

Mr. Chang Xi Min REHEE 0

Independent non-executive Directors BV ¥ HTEE

Mr. Chan Kai Wing FoR e 5 2 O 0
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung wkEEE 0 0
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki BAERELE 0 0
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chang Xi Min is currently the Chairman of the Board and Mr.
Chang Hoi Nam is currently the Chief Executive Officer. In accordance
with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code and Report, the roles
of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and
exercised by different person.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board has taken primary
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years from 6 January
2012 (renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the service
agreement).

Non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company on 1 December 2013 for a term with effect from
1 December 2013 until 30 November 2014.

In accordance with the articles 84 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third shall retire from the office and being eligible offer
themselves for re-election provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Directors to be retired by rotation shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last appointment or re-appointment.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in order to maintain high level of corporate governance
standard of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on
1 December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.1.1 of the CG Code and Report. The Remuneration
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Pang Man
Kin Nixon, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chan Kai Wing (chairman of Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and Senior Management, to
review performance based remuneration and to ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee determined the policy
for the remuneration of executive directors, assessed the
performance of executive Directors and approved the terms of
executive Director’s services contracts. The Remuneration
Committee adopted the model which is described in the code
provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the CG Code and Report, it makes
recommendations to the board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2013. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Remuneration committee are set out in the table on page 58
of this report.

Corporate Governance Report

CREARE

EXEE%8Y

SERCRUFMEER  BRZEGRE
EEEE  LERAATBKTZ LA
2k -

FWEES

ARBRZT——F+ - A BRILFME
S& URBGXREATALRHEFEB.1
HEEMBMERE - FTHEZEeh 29
EEYXBAERMABBIIFATERR
gt (FNEEe TR MIKERER
B o

pill

O

.

FHZBE e T RRE R BB HBBEA
FEREEEREENGREERBEAEER
ZHE - METRRMES e BN
BzHEM MERLEBESBETAS Z2H
W o

RAFE  FHEESETRTES 2 H M
BOR - fHERITESR CRIR - WHARITE
ERBELN K - HHE B SERMEIEET
R EERSTRI R E 2 5F AR EB.1.2(c)(i)
AT 2 E, - MEESRZERNTES
RafhEBEZ 5 -

BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HULEFE %
MEESRT—ASE -  SHTHEESKE

ZHFERBHNARELESAZRE -

55 China Assurance Finance Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 1 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision A.4.5 of the CG Code and Report. The Nomination
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Chang Hoi
Nam, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kai Wing and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung (chairman of the
Nomination Committee).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, to access
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

During the financial year, the Nomination Committee determined the
policy for the nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential directors, reviewing the
credentials of the potential director base on his/her qualifications,
skills, experience, credibility and reputation. Once the Nomination
Committee confirmed the potential director(s) is/are qualified to be
the Director(s) and his/her appointments are in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole, it will make
recommendations to the Board for approval. The director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting after his/her appointment and shall be subject to
re-election by the Shareholders at the meeting.

The director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall be subject to re-
election by the Shareholders at the meeting.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2013. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on page 58 of
this report.

Corporate Governance Report

REEES
EN/N) %:?**¢+:H*Eﬁﬁ%%§
& WREGEE AT RREZTRIEF
NFEALSFHIEEEBERE - RERES
H—BATESRIFELERRBIBILIEH
TEERERTEMMEERE REREE
GERF) MK

RAZRBGZIEBARIEIRIESTS
ZRE - KDNARK  MBEEEBKAES
BB Z AR I IFITESR 2B
M R FRESZINETZEENES
SRRz -

RAMBEFE RERECGCETRLES
ZER -REZEGHEVEEFTAE I
RIBEMN - IBE - &R FERAMNLLREE
BEREETARZAEREE - BRRELESE
REZANEQEBNAES  AEZENE
ARBREBR 2 ERNG  REEZEEH
MESSRLEBEZRMHELE - BEFS
RECZES  ARHEEZAERZEERRA
S LABRREE EFSLRINEFHZERZ
EERIREEZTRZE -RRRAE
WHE CERREE -

HQ\ ]]]

EEeZINEHRAESEERZESH
EREAZERARTRITZ TREERRBF

A& WAEG FERESEIE -
HE - T—=F+_A=+—HILFE &
HEEBEBRIT-AEE SREBEEEKE

ZHERBEHNAREESEZRE -

TERREREEARAR —T-=FFR 56



Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 December 2011
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and
5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG
Code and Report. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung and Mr. Chow
Shiu Ki.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, to approve their remuneration and
terms of engagement, to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards, to review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting; and oversee financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Company.

The Audit Committee has met its responsibilities to review the Group’s
quarterly reports for the three months and nine months ended 31
March 2013 and 30 September 2013 respectively, interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2013 and the Group’s audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2013 and provided advice
and comments thereon. The Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect of
the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2013. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page 58 of this
report.

Corporate Governance Report

CREARE

BEREESG

RARRZE——F+ZA—BXIBZZ
B®  WREAIZR EmREIZE5.285%5.29
RARBEERTRIRRE 2 FRAMEE
CIBEzHEHTEEMMELE - FZE
ESHR=RBUIENTESANR - BIRESR
%&x$V§Aazﬁv kB LENEE
BEooA -

—

BENREBGZIERARNESTEHRINDZ
%%Zé& %E&iﬁﬁéﬁ&ﬁ%%&

RIERIELES  RREMRER > FH KL
%%W%%ﬁ%Zﬁi&&@%& V&S
TZoBRR 2 K WM RS Mgl 75 e
BIEH2ERER  REEARRPBHR
BN AR IR -

EREZESDEKRKERE - %%$%@@§
—E—=F=ZA=+—HI=EARE=E

;—:Eﬂﬂ:+ﬁthﬂﬂ2§&ﬁ%‘
BEZZT—=FA=THILERERZHE
WERAEEHE-_T—=F+=-_A=+—

AIEFEZRBZFERE  YHRELE
R - B BN AKREY B HR

&W%ﬁT&Vﬁ§$@&EEEhﬁL

%ﬁ?%@%@§:3—5¢+_ﬂz+—
BIIMOREH - EREZEEENK
EZﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬁﬁW%$ﬁm%%EZ%

i -

57 China Assurance Finance Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings EEgRHERRE
Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the #HZ-_Z—=F+_A=+—HIIFE &
Board and its respective committees during the year ended 31 ZEREEENHESEZEe 2 HFEHBN
December 2013 are as follows: N
Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual
Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to

attend attend attend attend attend
Eze REZEE §MzEE  ENZEES
E ] e Lt ] 8% RRAEAE

Name of Director Note BiE/ BHE/ Bk gHE/ BHE/
Eze [k REREE  REKEE  GEREE  SEREE  SERLE
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam FalmLE 21/29 17 17 N/A 17
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon TXELE 21/29 1N 1N N/A 1
Mr. Chen Xiao Li BRI S 1/29 0/ o N/A 1/1
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Chang Xi Min RE#LE 2/29 0/1 0/1 1/4 1
Independent non-executive Director ~ BUFH7TES
Mr. Chan Kai Wing RiEREE 18/29 17 17 4/4 17
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung mKELE 22/29 1N 1N 3/4 1
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki EEL:S: 22129 i i 4/4 i
Corporate Governance Function I EERBEE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance EE &8 ERBELEICEEATE LIRS
duties in accordance with code provision D.3.1 to the CG Code and 2 STEIEX ED.3NEBITOEE AR E -
Report which are included to develop and review the Company BEZEENEFAARCEEAZHENTE
policies and practices on corporate governance, to review and i FHENEEARARAREETAaREEREE 2
monitor the training and continuous professional development of EFIINMIFERERRE » FTAAGINEERTE
Directors and senior management of the Company, the issuer's ZARRIBE LT @ BHAQGESTEE
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory I (EEEASTRIZ BN R EEARE 2 H
requirements and reviewing the issuer’s compliance with the CG & °

Code and Report and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.
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AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, remuneration paid and
payable to the auditor of the Group (the “Auditor”) are approximately
HK$550,000 for audit services and HK$30,000 for non-audit services
respectively.

Director’s Acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this report.

Financial Reporting

The Management has provided to all Directors quarterly updates
with quarterly consolidated financial statement of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details during the
regular Board meetings. In addition, the Management has provided
all members of the Board, in a timely manner, updates on any material
changes to the performance, position and prospects of the Company
and sufficient information for matters brought before the Board. The
Management will spare no effort to provide all members of the board
with more detailed and promptly monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail in coming future.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations.

The audit committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the internal
control system and reported its findings and made recommendations
to the Board. The Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2013. The Board will continue to assess the
effectiveness of internal controls by considering reviews performed
by the audit committee and executive management.

The Board and the Audit Committee have same view on re-
appointment of external auditors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. Wong Po Ling, Pauline
(“Ms. Wong”) as the Company Secretary since 30 September 2013.
She is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and she possesses more than 15 years of experience in
mergers and acquisitions and corporate governance matters. In
accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Wong has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2013.

The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. Pang
Man Kin, Nixon, an executive Director and the vice chairman of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Report

TERER®RE

R EREE 1

EERREARREABRMZAGERR
o MRERRZME R ARAR 2 EETE
EAREEETRERNRE - RMERA
FZMBENMRTES 2 R Mk - A
KR B AR R A AR B o

BERZESCHANEF AR BRENE
HEITEE  WAEFFERREREZ - E
FERBE_T—=Ft+_A=1t—HI*F
ERAEE 2z AMEERG 2 BRIEETSE
L -EFEHERERERRBGREERE
PTETZRE  BEFEARBERZAER
1 o

EEENERZESHERIINEZBMER
—% o

DNEWE

FEBRZT([Ex)) RZTE—=FNLA=
THREARRZIARGIWE - BRAES
FAWEASEE BRBRB1ISFREWES
HREEEREHE LR - RIEBAIZERET
RAFEEA51E  BE-_S—=F+-_A=+
—HIEFE » FLXTE2ET LGN
ERE LS -

ARBZEBRABMBAREXREE (K
REMITEERE TR

TERREREEARAR —T-=FFR 60



SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the article 58 of the Articles, any one or more Members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put their enquiries
to the Board

The Company endeavor to maintain two way communications with
the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders are
encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@cafgroup.hk or by mail to the principle
address of the Company at Units 03-05, 17/F., K. Wah Centre,
191 Java Road, North Point. All the enquiries are dealt with in timely
manner. The Shareholders are also encouraged to attend the AGM
and extraordinary general meetings (the “EGM”) of the Company
and to put their enquiries to the Board directly. Notices are duly
being circulated to the Shareholders in order to ensure each
Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM and the EGM. The
Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and the senior
Management attend the aforesaid meetings and respond to the
Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are set out in the proxy forms and
will be explained by the chairmen of the AGM and EGM orally in the
beginning of the aforesaid meetings.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders of the Company may include a resolution to be
considered at an extraordinary general meeting. The requirements
and procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed
“Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency
is a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its
shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.cafgroup.hk) has provided an effective communication platform
to the public and the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there had not been any
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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TEEE © +8522218 8288
{8H : +852 28152239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of China Assurance Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 1% A R

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Joanne Y.M. Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05419
Hong Kong, 24 March 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
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tatement of Comprehensive Income

e EHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ —Z—=F+ - A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E2—=F —E—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR® T ARBTT
Revenue U 5 8 16,316 23,987
Other income A A 8 3,296 2,481
Administrative and THREERX
operating expenses (23,650) (15,586)
Listing expenses ETAX - (3,633)
Equity-settled share-based LARR AR B E AR K
payment expenses (ARG E) 28((ii) (2,515) (11,571)
Finance cost A& A AR 10 (1,863) -
Loss before income tax TS ®iRI &5 18 9 (8,416) (4,322)
Income tax expense FrigHif < 12 (2,696) (4,515)
Loss for the year AFEEEIE (11,112 (8,837)
Other comprehensive income RNARHEA ARIGEA
attributable to the owners of the FHEWE (TRER
Company may be classified to profit ~ HAFEIZI| A382%)
or loss in subsequent periods
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of 3 #15 JM & & 3 75
financial statements of MK 2
foreign operations bE X Wz (B8 292 (109)
Total comprehensive income AFEEEEBALTE
for the year (10,820) (8,946)
Loss for the year attributable to: EIEARFEEE :
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE7Z =N (11,172) (9,486)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R A 60 649
(11,112) (8,837)
Total comprehensive income JEiE2mE =B
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NIEZ PN (10,880) (9,595)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R M 60 649
(10,820) (8,946)
Loss per share — Basic and diluted BREE - EAREE
(RMB cents) (AR 5) 14 (0.71) (0.62)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma AR TR

As at 31 December 2013 R —_ZE—=F+_A=+—H

2013 2012
=T _=£F —E——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AREFTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L] 16 107,516 70,874
Land use rights T b AR 17 36,407 37,218
Deposits paid =AD& 19 23,500 25,452
167,423 133,544
Current assets RBEE
Account and other receivables FEUBR A K b e UL SR TE 20 43,579 29,059
Pledged bank deposits EEHBEITER 21 54,609 47,389
Restricted bank deposits SR BRI TIF N 22 16,191 14,411
Cash and cash equivalents ReMkIREFMEER 23 9,332 4,002
123,711 94,861
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals, other payables and JEFtER - EfEN
deferred income FIE MR IE WA 24 52,244 24,337
Other borrowing HEMEE 25 23,639 =
Current tax liabilities BNEAfRIE B & 5,545 6,765
81,428 31,102
Net current assets RBEESFE 42,283 63,759
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBEE
and net assets UREEZFE 209,706 197,303
EQUITY ExE
Equity attributable to owners ARATEE AEGER
of the Company
Share capital fi& 7R 26 12,907 12,539
Reserves ] 27(a) 189,716 177,741
202,623 190,280
Non-controlling interests FEERE R 7,083 7,023
Total equity R 209,706 197,303
On behalf of the Board
REREZTE
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam (GRELE % 4£) Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (3 X B 5% 4)
Director (£ %) Director (£ %)
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Statement of Financial Position

B B8 AR 5 R

As at 31 December 2013 R —_ZE—=F+_A=+—H

2013 2012
— = —E—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B RRIEE 18 51,110 51,110
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U5 BT /BB A B FRIE 18 133,438 128,521
Other receivables, prepayments Han e sIE ~ AN
and deposits paid HEREMES 12,301 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEFMEIEE 350 151
146,089 128,672
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEETERREAM
J& 1~ 5RI8 433 840
Net current assets RBEESE 145,656 127,832
Total assets less current liabilities HEEBRRBEER
and net assets EEFE 196,766 178,942
EQUITY EE
Share capital IR 26 12,907 12,539
Reserves Rt 27(b) 183,859 166,403
Total equity fES AR 196,766 178,942

On behalf of the Board
REREZTE

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam GRS\ 5t 4)
Director (£ %)

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (¥ X B % 4)
Director (£ %)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BiZE =T —=F + A=+ —HILFE

Non-

controlling Total

Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
AARERARERS FBRER  ERAE

Share Share
capital  premium Share
(note 26) (note 27(d))  Exchange option  Retained
REx  BRGEE  reserve  reserve profits Total

(Wetoe) (Hord) EXG% BREGE RERA ait
RVBOO0  RMBOOO ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMBIO00  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTL ARETn ARRTn ARMTn ARETR

At 1 January 2012 “T-—F-f-H - - 10,539 - 35,640 46,179 6,374 52,558
Shareholder loan capitalisation R EFHEA(

(note 26(a) (Hiz52612) ~ 108300 - - ~ 108300 ~ 108300
Issue of shares under group BEEERIRG

restructuring exercise (Hf3E26(b))

(note 26(0) 1205 (11,299 - - - - - -
Issue of shares in public RARBEREIRG -

offeing, net note 26(c) 3 (2600 1219 31,070 - - - 3% - 3%
Equity-settled share-based RENBRH BEERR

payment granted (note 28(ii))  (SAIRZAEE) (K328 - - = 11571 = 11,571 = 11,571
Exercise of share options EEmRE

(note 28) (Rt3k28) % 1742 = (231) = 1536 = 1536
Transaction with owners BEARS 12,539 129,817 - 11,340 - 153,696 - 153,696
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - - (9,486) (9,486) 649 (8,837)
Other comprehensive income ~ AEEEM2ENE

for the year - - (109) - - (109) - (109)
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE 2 AMELE

the year - - (109 Py (95% 69 (8946)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—E+-f=+-A

and 1 January 2013 k=E-=%-f-H 12,539 129,817 10,430 11,340 26,154 190,280 7,023 197,303
Equity-settled share-based REUBRND BEERR

payment granted (note 28(ii)  (JAIRZAEE) (M 328 - - - 2,515 - 2,515 - 2,515
Laspe of share options (note 26) BRI % (Hf328) - - - (31) 3 - - -
Exercise of share options (note 28) 17 EE&RR 12 (f5£28) 368 23,611 - (3.211) - 20,708 - 20,708
Transaction with owners BEARS 368 23,611 - (787) 3 23,023 - 23,023
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - M1 (1117 60 (11,112
Other comprehensive income ~ AEEEM 2 ElE

for the year - - 292 - - 292 - 292
Total comprehensive income ~~ AEE 2 AMELE

for the year - - 292 - (11,172 (10,880) 60 (10,820)
At 31 December 2013 “5-=F+-f=1-H 12,907 153,428 10,722 10,553 15,013 202,623 7,083 209,706
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nsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HEZ —Z—=F+ - A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —EF—_F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{hE=3 AR® T ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETH2HEERE
Loss before income tax FriS i Al 18 (8,416) (4,322)
Adjustments for: PR
Amortisation for land use rights o Hb {5 AR AR 4 6 9 811 796
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 9 1,737 1,265
Bank interest income RITH BUA 8 (2,800) (2,133)
Equity-settled share-based LARR D B E R K
payment expenses (ABRA&EE) A 28((ii) 2,515 11,571
Impairment loss on account FEWBR OB BB 1B
receivables 9 6,500 —
Finance cost BE K A 10 1,863 =
Operating profit before BBEESEHA 2
working capital changes il 2,210 7177
(Increase)/Decrease in account FEUR AR FR (g 0) B>
receivables, net of deferred income IR E W A (2,247) 5,639
Increase in other receivables, H b FE W RIE « TERRK
prepayments and deposits paid HREiRE M (19,318) (3,922)
Increase in restricted bank deposits 5 [R %I $R 1717 24 AN (1,780) (7,111)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BB IR TSI N (7,220) (4,089)
Increase in accruals FEET B A K& H b
and other payables T FRIEIE AN 24 4,611 3,179
Net cash (used in)/generated KEEK (R EEXZ
from operations REFEE (23,744) 873
Interest received B U F B 3,216 2,133
Income tax paid BEFREH (3,916) (9,477)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHMAEEZ
RERE (24,444) (6,471)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 H 2 —FT—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 AR TR AREFT
Cash flows from investing activities RETBZ2HERE
Purchases of property, BEWE  BEREE
plant and equipment 24 (13,503) (24,121)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WM - BEREHEZ
property, plant and equipment Bffige 19 - (1,952)
Payments for land use rights AT L R AE 17 - (938)
Proceeds from disposals of HEME - BEK
property, plant and equipment R FIE 210 —
Net cash used in investing activities REZTEBfMAZRSFE (13,293) (27,011)
Cash flows from financing activities RETE2HERE
Net proceeds from issue of BATHTRAD FT1S 508
new shares FER - 32,289
New proceeds from borrowing BEMMSHRIEFE 25 23,639 —
Net proceeds from exercise of T{E AR AEFT1S BE
share options F R 20,708 1,536
Interest paid BT B (1,572 —
Net cash generated AMETBEELE RS TE
from financing activities 42,775 33,825
Net increase in cash HekRBEESEEERZ
and cash equivalents BN FEE 5,038 343
Effect of foreign exchange rate SIEERSH BT
changes, net 292 (109)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HZHRER
at 1 January HE&EEEER 4,002 3,768
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—HZ
at 31 December ReRAELEEER 9,332 4,002

Please refer to note 19 and note 24 for non-cash transactions during the year.
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1.

71

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 10 March 2011. The registered office of
the Company is the office of Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
have been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 6 January 2012.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”
hereafter. In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”), the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Capital Gain Investments Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”), a
limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI").

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 were approved by the board of directors on
24 March 2014.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective terms include all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and applicable Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continueq)

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention. The significant
accounting policies that have been used in the preparation
of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSS

3.1 Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs —

effective on 1 January 2013

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Amendments to
HKAS 1 (Revised)

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets

HKFRS 7 and Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group
to separate items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that may be reclassified to profit and
loss in the future (e.g. revaluations of available-for-sale
financial assets) and those that may not (e.g. revaluations
of property, plant and equipment). Tax on items of other
comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed on the
same basis. The amendments will be applied
retrospectively.

2.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSS

73

(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs —

effective on 1 January 2013 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights to
variable returns from the investee and the ability to use
the power over the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS
10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment of
control. For example, the standard introduces the concept
of “de facto” control where an investor can control an
investee while holding less than 50% of the investee’s
voting rights in circumstances where its voting interest is
of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size and
dispersion of those of other individual shareholders to give
it power over the investee. Potential voting rights are
considered in the analysis of control only when these are
substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to
exercise them. The standard explicitly requires an
assessment of whether an investor with decision making
rights is acting as principal or agent and also whether
other parties with decision making rights are acting as
agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on
behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore
does not control the investee when it exercises its decision

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 755 R AR B B

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSS
(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs —

effective on 1 January 2013 (continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

making authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10 may
result in changes in those entities which are regarded as
being controlled by the Group and are therefore
consolidated in the financial statements. The accounting
requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other
consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject
to certain transitional provisions.

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces new
disclosure requirements, including those related to
unconsolidated structured entities. The general objective
of the standard is to enable users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests
on the reporting entity’s financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSS

75

(Continued)

3.1 Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs —

effective on 1 January 2013 (continued)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how
to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by
other standards. The standard applies to both financial
and non-financial items measured at fair value and
introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy. The
definitions of the three levels in this measurement hierarchy
are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value
as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit
price). The standard removes the requirement to use bid
and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in
an active market. Rather the price within the bid-ask
spread that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs used in
measuring fair values and the effects of fair value
measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13
can be adopted early and is applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these pronouncements. The
Directors so far concluded that the application of these
new pronouncements will have no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSS
(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group.

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

The Directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the
first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncements. Information on new or amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group’s
accounting policies is provided below. Certain other new
or amended HKFRSs have been issued but are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSS
(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continuead)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Under the standard, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains
or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will
have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the
recognition and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that
are designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to change
in credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for de-recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollar
(“HK$”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
primary economic environment in which the principal
subsidiaries of the Group operate. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

4,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year (if any) are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Except for those acquisitions which qualify as common
control combination, which are accounted for using
merger accounting, acquisition of subsidiaries or business
is accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost
of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

79

5.1 Basis of consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

otes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 755 R AR B B

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.1

5.2

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
at the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(“CGU’s”) value-in-use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the year
in which it arises.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.2

5.3

81

Impairment of non-financial assets (continueq)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to profit or loss in the year in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-
in-progress (“CIP”), are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on straight-line method to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment,
other than CIP, to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life, as follows:

Buildings
Furniture, fixtures

and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

20 years
3 to 5 years

3 to 5 years or over the
lease term whichever is
the shorter

Motor vehicles 5 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 755 R AR B B

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.3

5.4

Property, plant and equipment continued)

The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is de-recognised and is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

CIP which mainly represents property, plant and
equipment under construction is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct and indirect costs incurred during
the periods of construction, installation and testing. When
the assets concerned are completed and ready for use,
the costs are reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.
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5.4

3.9

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

Leases (Continued)

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on straight-line method over the
lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

Land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on straight-line method over the term of the
lease except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
by the Group from use of the land.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of capital
are deducted from capital (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extend they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.6 Financial assets

The Group'’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the end of reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases of financial
assets are recognised on trade date.

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the instruments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These are initially recognised at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence
of impairment.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

85

5.6 Financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable data
includes but not limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 755 R AR B B

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.6

5.7

Financial assets (continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group'’s financial liabilities include accruals and other
payables and other borrowing.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

All the Group’s financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value, net of directly attributable transaction
costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using effective interest method.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

87

5.8

5.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.10 Income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

89

5.11 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from financial guarantee (as the case may
be, including consultancy services related to
issuance of financial guarantee) is recognised over
the contract period on a time apportionment basis;

(b) income from performance guarantee (as the case
may be, including consultancy services related to
issuance of performance guarantee) is recognised
and determined using percentage of completion
method. Percentage of completion is calculated by
comparing the good supplied or services rendered
by the Group’s customers to total contracted amount
with third parties; and

(c) interest income is calculated on time-proportion
basis using effective interest method.

5.12 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”),
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of employees’
salaries to the central pension scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.12 Employee benefits continued)

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

5.13 Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
share option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number
of equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number
of options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted. As
long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge
is made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not
adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.13 Share-based payments (continueq)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services, the
fair value of goods or services received is recognised in
profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments, a
liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or
services received.

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve and the proceeds
received net of an directly attributable transaction costs
up to the nominal value of the share issued are reallocated
to share capital with any excess being recorded as share
premium. When the share options are lapsed, forfeited or
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

5.14 Foreign currencies

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.14 Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB at
the closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
exchange reserve in equity.

5.15 Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy  is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

93

5.15 Related parties (Continueq)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(il

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

5.15 Related parties (continued)

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

5.16 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy on “Provisions and
contingent liabilities”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policy on “Revenue Recognition”.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. Where the contracted fee is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, it is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
contracted fee is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of the corresponding liability.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

95

5.17 Performance guarantee contracts

The Group issues performance guarantee contracts in
which the Group agrees to provide guarantees to its
customers who entered into contracts with third parties
for services to be rendered or goods to be supplied within
an agreed time period. Performance guarantee contracts
issued by the Group are classified as insurance contracts
under HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” as under the
contracts the Group has accepted significant insurance
risk from the counterparties by agreeing to compensate
the counterparties if a specified uncertain future event
adversely affects the counterparties. These performance
guarantee contracts are in general of short duration of
less than one year.

Where the Group issues a performance guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. The contracted fee of the performance
guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
recognised as revenue in profit or loss based on
percentage of the guaranteed performance delivered over
the period of risk according to the relevant performance
guarantee issued. The proportion of contracted fees
deferred represents the Group’s recognised insurance
liability.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether its
recognised insurance liability is adequate with reference
to the estimated net contractual obligations under all
outstanding performance guarantee contracts. The
contractual obligation is estimated using the current
estimate of all contractual future cash flows under the
outstanding insurance contracts and of related cash flows
with available information. When the assessment shows
that the carrying amount of deferred income as the
Group’s recognised insurance liability is inadequate, the
entire amount of shortfall is recognised to increase the
Group’s insurance liability and charged to profit or loss of
the year when the shortfall is identified.
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5.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
5.18 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

5.19 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcome that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
to be affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of receivables

The Group’s provision policy for doubtful debts is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and ageing
analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer and the related
parties. If the financial conditions of the customers and
other debtors of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the CGU to
which the asset is allocated. Estimating value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated future
cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in
an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision
previously made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 755 R AR B B

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 6. FE=:HET RS @
ESTIMATES (continued)

(iii) W% - MERRE 2

(iii) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is made based on
the experience of the Group with similar assets that are
used in a similar way. Depreciation charge is revised if the
estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation.
Estimated useful lives are reviewed, at the end of each
reporting period, based on changes in circumstances.

(iv) Estimation of provision for financial

guarantee and performance guarantee
issued

Management reviews the creditworthiness of its
customers and re-assesses the fair value of collaterals of
individual customers for financial guarantee and
performance guarantee issued by the Group from time to
time. The best evidence of fair value of collaterals is current
prices in an active market for similar collaterals in the same
location and condition. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from a variety of
source including public accessible sources, such as
internet searches, recent transaction prices, statistics on
recent market development and market quote. If the
management considers the financial conditions of the
Group’s customers deteriorate or the customers would
default in payment or contracts, provisions will be made
and the amount is based on the exposure which is the
maximum guarantee amounts less the value of the
collaterals.
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FHERFRRESEREMRIRE
B E R AERT ©

(iv) A ERTREERR

BRE|ERBEE

BEEEBRIETFPZEENRK
EfFHEERN R PR AKE N
BT AR KB OFEREH
mZ A E - EfmAFEZR
B RENARR A KA 2
BOER RN RIS 2 HITE
& BERBAMERE  AEE
EEZcEBRNAEQ T EMA
#E - RIELHEE - BEEE
BXRASRBKRZER  BER
FRRIGHRR - fINEBERS
MHIR R (B - T 5% R EE
LTS HRE- - HEEERSAE
BEPZMBRARERXZER
FeBBERIELN - BlIgEH
B cBERERRETE - AR
R ERBRERRER -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may earn
revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of
the internal management reporting information that is provided
to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in
order to allocate resources and assess performance of the
segment. Executive directors have determined that the Group
has only one single business component/reportable segment
as the Group is only engaged in the provision of financial
guarantee service and performance guarantee service which
is the basis to allocate resources and assess performance. The
Group’s revenue from external customers is divided into two
groups of services which are disclosed in note 8.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group’s principal place of operation is in the PRC. For the
purpose of segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8,
the Group regards the PRC as its country of domicile. All the
Group’s revenue and non-current assets are principally
attributable to the PRC, being the single geographical region.

Geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services are provided. Total revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no
customer with whom transaction exceed 10% of the Group’s
revenue. During the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue
derived from a major customer accounted to RMB2,814,000,
which represented 11.7% of the Group’s revenue in 2012.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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REDBRAEE R BB ARESE
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ZREHNEREHAMERDBEIR
DERKRRFEZALEEZHREH
REMMBETELEDE - ARAEE
B FRHBE BRI MEOER
BRT5 - Y LAUCAE R BL B IR M A f &
RzER SRTESR/AEEHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5 755 R AR B B

8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents the income from provision of
financial and performance guarantee services. Revenue and
other income recognised during the year ended 31 December

8. Wk HEMKA

MASETIZREHME U - JRAD
AEBE5E  ERHEBRENE
WERREZBA -BE-_T—=F
TZA=+—HALFEEER WS

2013 are as follows: REMW AT :
2013 2012
=T _=£F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETF T
Revenue &
Income from financial B E ERUA
guarantee 16,316 18,6685
Income from performance B A ERBA
guarantee - 10,452
16,316 23,987
Other income H A
Bank interest income IRITH B WA 2,800 2,133
Government grants X AT #76 Bh 496 —
Foreign exchange gain, net SN 3, 2% W - 348
3,296 2,481
TERREBEEERATE T —=FFK 100



LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9.

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R AR Y =

FriEBirl 1R

FrEHaBERINIKRNUATIERRE
s B

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Auditors’ remuneration % ELED B 477 442
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREETE
plant and equipment 1,737 1,265
Amortisation for land use rights = 3 {# A 1  §5 811 796
Employee benefit expenses B EREARX
(including directors’ remuneration (BREESME (FsE11))
(note 11))
Salaries and wages HERTE 4,507 3,552
Pension scheme contributions R & 5+ 3 5%
— Defined contribution plans — EREMEREE 486 232
Equity-settled share-based MES (ZE—Z—F: BF—RESH)
payment to employees VARt B B E T R
(2012: including a director) (ABRAEE) A 1,257 5,631
6,250 9,415
Equity-settled share-based MEBREZEZFNUINZEE
payment to eligible persons AT ARG AEER K
other than employees and (ABRAEE) A
directors 1,258 5,940
Operating lease charges in MERBIKEHEER
respect of properties 1,511 1,004
Impairment loss on account FEW AR OB E BB
receivables 6,500 —
10. FINANCE COST 10. R & XA
2013 2012
—E—=f —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Interest on other borrowing HMEE 2 E
— wholly repayable — BRERR—FREZEHEE
within 1 year with repayable
on demand clause 1,863 —
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. %%@H%&ﬁ%m%%ﬁ@ﬂ

PAID EMPLOYEES
(@) Directors’ remuneration () EEM<
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2012: TREE(ZZE—ZF :78) 2B
7) directors were as follows: N ENMEEHIAT
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share-based scheme
Fees in kind payments  contributions Total
Fe-2R UROAREX Bihe
ik RENAE (A7 ARELEE) HE L3 aif
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARB TR ARBT R AR®BT R ARBTR

Year ended BZ-E5-=%+_4
31 December 2013 =t-HLE%E
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Pang TRk - 484 - 12 496
Mr. Chang REE - 486 - 6 492
Ms. Chen Xiao Li =\ilkd - 288 - - 288
- 1,258 - 18 1,276
Non-executive directors: FHITEE
Mr. Chang Xi Min RAEHLE 96 - - - 9
Independent BUFHITES
non-executive directors:
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu MkERE
Cheung 96 - - - 96
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki BEELE 96 - - - 96
Mr. Chan Kai Wing REREE 96 - - - 96
288 - - - 288
Total & 384 1,258 - 18 1,660
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEME R EEZE 5 M
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

+ &)

(a) EEME @)

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share-based scheme
Fees in kind payments contributions Total
e 28 NRhAEER Bihe
we RENHE NRUARAER) AT EIE R At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Year ended BE-Z--F1-A
31 December 2012 ST-HIEEE
Executive directors: HIEE :
Mr. Pang ik - 488 - 11 499
Mr. Chang REE - 488 - 6 494
Ms. Chen Xiao Li BN R - 293 1,188 - 1,481
- 1,269 1,188 17 2,474
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Chang Xi Min REHEE 9 - - - 98
Independent BUFHITES
non-executive directors:
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu HkELE
Cheung 98 = = = 98
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki BZEELE 9 - - - 9
Mr. Chan Kai Wing REREE 98 - - - 98
294 - - - 294
Total At 392 1,269 1,188 17 2,866
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEME R A Z RS H B

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) AT @)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEZEHHMAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included HE-_T—=F+=-H=+—H

three directors for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: one) whose emoluments are reflected in note 11(a).

Analysis of the emolument of the remaining two highest
paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2013

IEFE  AEBREZRSHMA
ITHEE=2ES (T —F:
—&)  EME S R E11(a)F
[ BR o

BE_T—=%t+_A=+—H
IE5FE - HEfmA (CT——F -

(2012: four), whose emolument fell within the band of nil &) EaEMATZHMEMNRE
to HK$1,000,000 are set out below: ZJ41,000,00078 L &8E - Jio T
T

2013 2012
=5 —E—_fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

Salaries, allowances e RBEREDHZ
and benefits in kind 512 237

Equity-settled share-based LARZ1D A EER K

payment expenses (AR EEE) 1,257 4,158
Defined contribution plans & 28 it 751 2l 7 17
1,776 4,412
During the year, no director, chief executives or any of the EA$¢FE MEES - THAR

highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments (2012: Nil). No bonuses were paid or
receivable by the directors, chief executives or any of the
highest paid individuals which were discretionary or were
based on performance or the Company, the Group or any
member of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors, chief executives or any of the highest
paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2012: Nil).

E%MEEW%&H HEE
EHMi( —ZF | o
mEES - ﬂﬁwﬁjxm%w
EEXNHIENBBRIZAR
a - AEBRAEEEFRKE R
AREE—T—=F+_A=+
—BIEFECRBEE A -
REBWERAAERERNES
TTIR A 3 3 B = 37 B A = S <1
(CE—ZF : M) EREEN
AR INARE B 2 52F) - =X
EBBEE ZB(E -
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11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEME R EEZE 5 M

PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) AT @

(b) Five highest paid individuals continued) (b) EEEZEHHMAL @
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENRENERERAB ZH B
management were within the following bands: HISLAT -

No. of
senior management
EREEBAS

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 11 8
HK$1,000,001 1,000,001 8 L&

to HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T - &

11 6

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRrfS MBI X

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Current tax — PRC BNEARIIE —
— Enterprise Income Tax — EMEHR((EEMEH])

(“EIT") 2,696 4,515
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits AEERREBEERELSIRNAE
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of EEKNERRIEERKEEFTEEERE
the Group are domiciled and operate. [ 13 2 i M BN FT 1S 5 ©
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the AEBRFANTBRESERNEEZ
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong FERERTA - R TG F ARG
Kong during the year (2012: Nil). s 2T ——F: \) o
EIT arising from the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2013 REBEZE-_T—=F+=ZH=+—H1t
was calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profits FE RABELEZLEMSHIIE
during the year (2012: 25%). BEATETERRMMA Z26%:18E (=

T——4F : 25%) o
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the PRC’s subsidiaries’
undistributed retained earnings of which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised are approximately RMB45,261,000
(2012: RMB43,673,000). No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group
is in a position to control the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding income
tax is levied on the foreign investor for the dividends distributed
out of the profits generated by the foreign investment
enterprises. No withholding income tax during the year as there
are no dividends distributed by the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before income tax at the statutory tax rate to the income tax

5 755 R AR B B

12. FTBHBAX @

N—_E—=F+_A=+—H  HrF
BB AR AD RBINAGEBMA
BREEHBEEEZ R ERERAN
BARMAL5 261,000 (ZE——4F :
AR¥43,673,0007T) ° AR AL E A
EHZERB AR ZREBE - B
ZEEBRTGRAILARRER - WER
REEHBRRELCHERE -

RIEPELRMAEHE - BINERE
ERBIMRECRELE 28 M DK
ZERERBERBHMEN - ARA
SEZPEMBARLES KRS -
HEANLEFBIPAEH -

BAEBERFHE 2 ERMEDAIEER
ZHBHAXBRERNRGTE 2

expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: BRAZ CHERAT :
2013 2012
—EB—=F —E—_4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Loss before income tax FriS i Al & 18 (8,416) (4,322)
Tax on loss before taxation, REBNBSEEER
calculated at the rates B f 2 @A EGTE
applicable to profits in the tax /i Al B 18 2 B I8 (2,104) (1,080)
jurisdictions concerned
Effect of different tax rates of REARDAE R LS
subsidiaries operating Z B R BT ETR
in other jurisdictions -2 510 578
Effect of non tax-deductible DR a2
expenses 4,289 4,938
Tax effect of tax losses RIERIIAEIE 2
not recognised MG 2 1 79
Income tax expense TSR 2 2,696 4,515
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13.

14.

15.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses amounting to RMB485,000
(2012:RMB478,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

Loss attributable to owners includes a loss of approximately
RMB5,643,000 (2012: RMB17,810,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per Share is based on loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB11,172,000 (2012: RMB9,486,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,569,132,000 (2012: 1,538,131,000)
ordinary share in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: same) as the impact
of the potential dilutive ordinary share outstanding has an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share presented for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: anti-dilutive).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

12.

13.

14.

15.
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B %5 ¥R AR Y =

BB @

A REETER B & a A 2R - WER
RE)FAIEE B A R % 485,000t (=
T—_1F : AR¥478,0007T) #RIE
ERIBEE ©

BEEARMLEER

BEARGBEEBEERAQRVBR
LREBRBHHARS5,643,0005T (=
= ——%F: AR%17,810,0007T) &
%*E o

FREE

BEREABBZAEDNERAR A
EABRBBFEZEBEBEHARK
11,172,000 (ZF——F : AR¥
9,486,0007T) * UREEE #1T
1,569,132,000/% & @A (=T — =4 :
1,538,131,0000%) 2 hn#EF19 K -

BN ARBITBEE ST BREE
EF_E—=F+_A=+—-HILFE
ZEBREAERERNRETTE (T
——F:REE)  BBE-_T—=
TZA=+—HLFE  SBREEE
BESREABE-H(CT——F:
= e

iR =

EZgTERINEBE_T—=F1+
“A=t-BULEFEZERE(CE—Z
FE) -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP  16. ¥ - BERZE — K

%E
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
B B HENE
BT RBAERG RE %8 EBIR ait

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—%-f-H - 199 1,203 662 43,351 45,415
Additions "E 831 1,405 2,864 2,902 16,119 24,121
Transferred from EREENRS

deposits paid 2,477 - - 798 - 3,275
Disposals & - (4 = = = 4
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF+ZR

and 1 January 2013 =+-BR=E-=F

—-A—H 3,308 1,600 4,067 4,362 59,470 72,807

Additions "E - 140 2,985 - 33,512 36,637
Transferred from S ERA &

deposits paid (note 19) ~ (Ai5¥19) - - - - 1,952 1,952
Disposals ik - ) (451) - - (459)
At 31 December 2013 ~ R=F—=F

+ZA=1-H 3,308 1,732 6,601 4,362 94,934 110,937

Accumulated 2itHE:

depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-f—H - 87 253 332 = 672
Charged for the year ~ AFEHk 120 289 501 355 = 1,265
Write back on disposals i £ &5 i 4 - 4 - - = 4
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+-F=1-H

and 1 January 2013 kZE-=%-f—-H 120 372 754 687 - 1,933
Charged for the year REEMR 160 516 172 289 - 1,137
Write back on disposals i £ i 4 - ) (241) - - (249)
At 31 December 2013  R-E—=4+-A=1—H 280 880 1,285 976 - 3,421
Net carrying amount; REFE
At 31 December 2013 ~ W=E-—=#+-A=1-H 3,028 852 5,316 3,386 94,934 107,516
At 31 December 2012 WZE-Z£+-A=+-H 3,188 1228 3,313 3,675 59,470 70,874
At 31 December 2013, the Group’s buildings in the PRC were RZZT—=F+=-_A=+—80 ' &&
held under medium term leases (2012: medium). The buildings B AR 2 EFARBBNRE (Z
were occupied by the Group during the year and the Group is T—_F : ) - ZFEFRFAR
in the process to apply the property certificate. AEEBER AEBERFFHER

% o

AL
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. LAND USE RIGHTS — GROUP

17. L ERE — AEE

2013 2012

—EB—=F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETFT

At 1 January n—HA—H 37,218 36,035
Addition NE - 938
Transferred from deposits paid ~ #E# B2 ik g - 1,041

Amortisation charge FRNEHSHE

during the year (811) (796)
At 31 December W+—_A=+—8”H 36,407 37,218

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s land use rights in the PRC
were held under medium term leases (2012: medium).

R-B-—Z=F+-A=+—H ' £&&
B P B 2 L sk AR A T LA AR 49
FBECZE——F:$H) -

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 18. A B A RER — &N2DF
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETFIT
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RIKE
— Unlisted shares, at cost — JE LMD - AKX
K&t 51,110 51,110
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U Fff B A &) FLIE 133,438 128,521
Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and MEBARGH®RAERT RERIEE
repayable on demand. KIEE o
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18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

18. RB LB EE — XD F

F—=F+-A=+—BHEA

(Continued) (&)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are as RE
follows: RIZFBT

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid up share

establishment capital/ Effective
and kind of registered interest Principal
legal entity capital held by the activities and
SRS R ERITR Company place of operation
Company name i 26 % BEREK ADTER FTEEER
NG FERERZER AMERZFE HFEZER EE R
Interests held directly
EREFEER
Hero Praise Limited Incorporated in the 1 ordinary share 100% Investment holding in
British Virgin Islands, of US$1 Hong Kong
limited liability company
HEERAT A3 B R B B R AT 1REEIETZ 100% REEK - BE
K BREERT el

Interests held indirectly

BEEEER

Aurora Logistics Capital
Assurance Limited

JERBERRER AT

Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty
Company Limited
(“Hebei Da Sheng”)

AL RBITRRER AT
(DA K&

Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty

Company Limited
(“Xiamen Da Sheng”)

Incorporated in
Hong Kong, limited
liability company
REBTMAL -
BEREERAR

Incorporated in the
PRC, a sino-foreign
joint venture

R B ACL -
RIEELE

Incorporated in the
PRC, a sino-foreign
joint venture

KRBT (EFY) ERARAR NP BEEMAKL -

(TEFAR&T])

RO ERE

200 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

200 EE1E T
B

US$13,800,000

371.13,800,0007T

RMB110,000,000

A E#110,000,0007T

TERREREEARAR — T =FFR

100%

100%

95%

95%

97.55%

97.55%

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REER
BB

Provision of financial
guarantee service,
performance
guarantee service
and advisory service
in the PRC

RESRERRY
B KV R AR 7% A )&
BRRSE - ®

Provision of financial
guarantee service,
performance
guarantee service
and advisory service
in the PRC

RESRMERRS
B K FE IR AR 75 A K%
BRI RS - E
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18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

18.

Particulars of

B %5 ¥R AR Y =

REBERAERE — AL F

(%)

Place of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid up share
establishment capital/ Effective
and kind of registered interest Principal
legal entity capital held by the activities and
LA S, R ST ERTR Company place of operation
Company name B BERE AAFRER FEEER
NCIEE ERERZER AMER2FHE FEzEz EENY
China Assets Group Incorporated in the 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding in
Management Limited Hong Kong, limited of HK$1 each Hong Kong
liability company
PEEREEEE REBTMAKL - 100l EE 1B T2 100% REER - BE
BRAR] EREMEAR TR
Guangzhou JunYan Incorporate in the RMB1,000,000 97.55% Investment holding in
Enterprise Management PRC, limited the PRC
Limited liability company
BMTKR2CEERRAR RPBEEMKL AR #¥1,000,0007T 97.55% REZER - +H
EREERAR
China Assets Group Incorporated in 100 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding in
Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited of HK$1 each Hong Kong
liability company
FReMEEREARAR REBTMKL 100REE1HETTZ 100% REER  BE
EREERAT TR
Rentop Limited Incorporated in 1 ordinary share 100% Investment holding in
Hong Kong, limited of HK$1 Hong Kong
liability company
BRAERAA REB ML - 1REEETZ 100% REERK - BB
EREERAT TR

The financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2013 have been examined by BDO Limited for
the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

111
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18. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

(Continued)

Hebei Da Sheng, a 95% owned subsidiary of the Company,
has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Hebei
Da Sheng, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

Baml) o

18. RB LB EE — XD F

RRATFEBIS%IAE Z B R B
REITHAEASHE R E R ([FFEK

B BRI AL KB 1T 2 FR 2 B HE 25 H) B 7S
AR R (KB REE HA) &5

T~
2013 2012
—E—=5F —EgE—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETFT
For the year ended 31 December BEt-A=t+—BLEE
Revenue Wz 13,749 21,422
Profit and total comprehensive — ZN4 & % | & 2 W 425
income for the year paks) 858 13,124
Profit allocated to NCI A FE 22 A% 42 2 2 B A9 5 ) 43 656
Cash flows from operating RETBH2HENE
activities 4,972 3,474
Cash flows from investing REFZHRERE
activities (7,220) (3,981)
Net cash outflows B[e R F5E (2,248) (507)
As at 31 December R+=BA=+—H
Current assets MEEE 79,525 78,463
Non-current assets EMENEE 89,174 89,110
Current liabilities REEE (29,690) (09,422)
Net assets BEFE 139,009 138,151
Accumulated NCI REHIEER RS (6,917) (6,874)
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. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
(Continued)

Xiamen Da Sheng, a 97.55% owned subsidiary of the Company,
has material NCI.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
Xiamen Da Sheng, before intra-group eliminations, is presented

Notes to the Financial Statements
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18. RB LB EE — XD F

(%)

KNBIBEEI7TS5%REZHBARE
PIKBRITIHEA 8 A JEFEARAEZS -

BRAEFIARBRTT Z FR1E B i a5 ) B 75
BRI R (KB REDE HA) &5

below: g
2013 2012
—EB—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
For the year ended 31 Decemher BZE+_-_A=+—HILFE
Revenue U =5 2,567 2,565
Profit/(loss) and total NEERF/ (BB &
comprehensive income eI Eay <
for the year 730 (306)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI A FE1%E AR 4 2 & Bic )
wmA/ (BE) 17 (7)
Cash flows from operating RETFBH2HRENE
activities 19,425 15,931
Cash flows from investing REEBHZ2HERE
activities (11,388) (16,496)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BemA/ (Rd) F58 8,037 (565)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8
Current assets MENE E 14,542 23,334
Non-current assets ERBEE 131,768 98,300
Current liabilities mEBE (29,553) (5,607)
Net assets BEFRE 116,757 116,027
Accumulated NCI R Rl e (166) (149)
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19. DEPOSITS PAID — GROUP

5 755 R AR B B

19. ERE — XxKE

2013 2012
=5 —E—_fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

Deposits paid for acquisition MBI ESZ 2
of properties (note) Ze (M) 23,500 23,500

Deposit for construction FRIBZERS

in progress (note 16) (Mf5E16) - 1,962
23,500 25,452

Note:

In September 2010, the Group entered into two agreements with Ja] 4 #T
HOEMEMRABEER AR (“¥TEL”) to acquire two properties for
considerations of RMB25,260,000 and RMB3,518,000 respectively. # &
o5 is a related party to the Company in which #7382 ’s shareholder is one
of the Company’s directors. According to the agreements, the properties
will be transferred to the Group upon full settlement of the considerations.
The Group had made deposits of approximately RMB27,018,000 to # &
¢ and the remaining balance of approximately RMB1,760,000 had been
included in the Group’s capital commitment (note 29(b)) as at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012.

During the year, RMB1,952,000 were transferred from non-current deposit
paid to construction in progress. This is non-cash transaction and has
been adjusted in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

B 5E -

RZZE—TFNA  AEEEILNREFH
ERZEAR AR ([FEE])FTEMMDHE -
DAAARY25 260,000 B AR
3,518,000 C R EEFITEM % - FTER B AR A
ZHEEATL  ARREF—(IEFAFREK
R o RIBZEE  ZEMESREEIMNRE
BEBTAEE - AEEDRFREZFLHA
R#27,018,0007c 21%% - MEI TEHRHAR
#1,760,000LEFFAREBR T —=F+
“A=Et—RHRZZT—=—F+-A=+—HZ
&AM (M 3E29(b) ©

FA - BRAIEREIES ARE,952,0007TF
HESTETIR - WAIRERS  EREE
—E—=F+-fA=t+—HUIFEZHELARS
MEBRAELAE -
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20.

115

ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP

20. FEUWBR X
PiN

| Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R AR Y =

Hfh R IR

58l

2013 2012

—E—=F —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR AREFIT

Account receivables & W BR 3R 23,584 21,466
Less: Allowance for B REE B RS

impairment loss (6,500) —

17,084 21,466

Prepayments SEENEAN 95 88

Deposits b 1,883 1,170

Other receivables H b fE W 5RIR 24,517 6,335

43,579 29,059

The Group’s account receivables represent the service fee
income receivables.

For service fee income, the customers are obliged to settle the
amounts according to the terms set out in relevant contracts,
with a grace period of up to 180 days. The balances as at
reporting dates were interest-free and due from a large number
of diversified customers and hence there was no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Directors consider that the fair values of account receivables
which are expected to be recovered within one year are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because these
balances have short maturity periods on their inception.

Based on the agreed payment terms as stipulated in the
contracts, ageing analysis of the Group’s account receivables
(net off impairment loss) as of 31 December 2013 is as follows:

REHE 7 W AR R B 4 AR 7% & A A
FEMRIR -

ARBERRAMNS @ TP ARRKE
etz GERENKE  ERARS
/31800 - AEENHE B R 2 B8RS
RERKE—HZTILEF  LES
AREREERR -

EERR ARIFEHRNEHAZ
H - BEHR —FARE 2 BRIRFKZ
AFEEREEmMECRALEENE
E o

RIEE LRI A 2 B EM FUER - K
SER =T —=F+-_A=+—H=z
JEUER ZX (FORR IR EE 1) 2 BRER D 4T
R

2013 2012

—E—=F —EB——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREFT

0 to 30 days 0E30H 980 1,644
31 to 90 days 31£290H 250 370
91 to 180 days 912 180H 705 11,986
Over 180 days Hi@m180H 15,149 7,466
17,084 21,466
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Notes to the Financial Statements

20. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP

(Continued)

Ageing analysis of the Group’s account receivables that were
not impaired is as follows:

5 755 R AR B B

£8 @

20. EEU%EE%&&EMEEH&%&IE

REE AR E < B AR Z Rtk 0 T

LIl

2013 2012

=5 —E—_fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETFT

Neither past due nor impaired K H R RBE 360 1,218
1 to 90 days past due #HI1ZE00H 870 796
91 to 180 days past due w91 = 180H 705 12,174
Over 180 days past due B R180H 15,149 7,278
17,084 21,466

Account receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to customers that have good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

The other classes within account and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The below table reconciled the impairment loss of account
receivables for the year:

B8 BB RORE 2 8 U Bk 315 A B AR
SEBERHFFIEEEREZEFPE
o REBELR ANEEERY
BERAEAEY  BESREKR/KA
2RNEO - HEERAR/BELERZE
FERRIE R R E R -

JE UK AR R % LAt M R TR 2 B s 2R R
TEECREERE -

T&REFFARKER 2 REEES
BE :

2013 2012

—E—=F —EF——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®E T ARETFT

At 1 January R—H—H - —
Impairment loss recognised BEERBEEE 6,500 =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 6,500 -
FEHERESBEEERAT T —=FF3F 116



20. ACCOUNT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
(Continued)

117

(@)

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the
accounting policy stated in note 5.6.

The Group holds collaterals over all its account
receivables. In the event of default or failure to repay any
outstanding guarantee amounts by the customers, the
Group will proceed with sale of collaterals. In order to
maintain the credit risk at desirable level, the Group’s
average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to ensure
the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee amount
(2012: 50%). At the reporting date, the fair value of the
pledged assets in respect of account receivables is as
follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R AR Y =

20. EEH%EE%&(&E{&BEH&%ME

(@)

58 @

REBETIENKGE5.6F78 2 & 5T
BURERRE RS -

AEBE R 2 AU EF IR HE
- MEFEQIREEET
AIAREMNEREE  ARERKHE
HHm o REFIEEEERRK
¥ AEEZ FHERIGEELL
RUEFFNE0%IA T IARE R AR B
BEREZAIKEME (CT——F
50%) - W#E B - ARARUSR
RZEEREEZRAFEDT :

2013 2012

=5 —E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT

Property, plant Y% - WERZE

and equipment 502,635 235,987
Inventories FE 307,376 380,682
Account receivables JE U BR TR 27,719 50,437
Bank deposits (note 22) RITER (HI5E22) 1,500 2,660
839,230 669,766

Certain aforementioned collaterals were also pledged to
the Group to secure the Group’s exposure under
unexpired financial guarantee contracts (note 32) as at
the reporting date.

FETLRERRTACERTARE
N AEBRNRE B2 R E
ERE MRHER (PHFE32) -
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5 755 R AR B B

21.

22.

23.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS — GROUP 21. EERBITHER — &K
Pledged bank deposits have maturities of one year as at 31 RZE—=F+-"A=+—H%SE
December 2013 (2012: one year). Such deposits are pledged ERRTFERZIBREA—F (2%
to certain banks as securities for providing financial guarantee ——F: —F) - REFHREEBTE
services to the customers. The effective interest rates of the FiR1T - EAMBEPIERHEEERER
Group’s pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2013 were BZIRE - RZE—=F+ZH=+
ranging from 0.35% to 3.5% (2012: 0.35% to 3.5%) per annum. —H  AEEEERRTERZER
MR HEFOIBEEISE(ZE—Z
F : 0.35EZE35F) °
As at 31 December 2013, all pledged deposits were RZEBE—=F+_A=+—H " A
denominated in RMB (2012: all). RMB is not freely convertible EERERUAREFE(ZZE—=
into other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the F:A)  c ARETITER#ERAR
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC thEY  GPEEHZEESEAESH
government. B B /S B B 2 SNEEBR I FT AR PR o
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES — GROUP 22. TRFVBITHEER — K
These bank deposits are kept in the PRC bank accounts of the ZERITERDERRAEERS
Group as collaterals of financial guarantees (note 32) and related ZRITRPIERB B R 2 E R M (Ft
account receivables (note 20). As these bank deposits are 7132) K& ARREFE YRR (Fi5E20) ° R
restricted to the use by the Group, they are not under the cash ZERTHERTIBRSEREEFR -
management of the Group. WABAKEE R EERE -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP 23 %% % ai ReEEEE —
@
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF—_4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% TR ARBTT
Cash in hand and bank balances F3#538 € KIRTT4AE &4 9,332 4,002

Included in the balance of approximately RMB567,000 as at
31 December 2013 (2012: RMB1,310,000) was denominated
in HKS$. All other balances were denominated in RMB and were
kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

TERREREEARAR — T =FFR

R-E—=F+_A=+—Hit A%
4 AR ¥ 567,0007T JH A B TTEHE
(ZZ—=F : AR™1,310,0007T) °
FTEEMESRTIAARKEE IR
FRRT - ARBTAIEHEHRAR
bk  BREEHZEESATT
B BT B e 2 9N PR Il BT AR PR ©
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23.

24,

25.

119

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R AR Y =

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP 23. RE&RIREEEER —
(Continued) AEE @
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the RITFRZAEDNRBERERAEE
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with 7 HEFEES - BITFEREFTA
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. MEAN Em R R AL 2 ERAR TR
1T e
2 =%
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND DEFERRED 24. FEEtE A - H A fE (Y F18
INCOME — GROUP MIBEZEWA —FKEEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E MR K
(note) 18 (5T 40,751 15,810
Deposits received Bz E 3,103 400
Deferred income REFBERZEZERA
from financial guarantee 7,425 7,554
Business and other tax payables & & 2 i & E b £ 1B 965 573
52,244 24,337
Note: MIeE -
During the year, additions to construction in progress included an amount FA ERIBZENSERFENAARE
of approximately RMB23,134,000 which represented accruals for 23,134,0007T Z LK AT B A - ZeF )
construction cost. The amount was accrued based on the relevant EREEREEIREEHE - ZeBERGE
agreements and construction progress. The amount is regarded as non- REMERTHERAIRER S RERER
cash transaction in the consolidated statement of cash flows and was H fh FE T SRIESIER ©
recorded as other payables as at year ended.
OTHER BORROWING 25 Hittfg &

As at 31 December 2013, the balance represented a loan,
guaranteed by Mr. Pang, a director of the Company and the
Company, obtained from an independent third party. The loan
was unsecured, bore interest at a rate of 15% per annum and
repayable on 25 March 2014. The loan contains clauses which
give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand
immediate payment.

R-ZB—=F+_"HA=+—H " %#&
BRB/ARBEFZRERAQRER
ZE=ZTER - MEERSEEM
BREF15EZMNERFR  RAR-F
—MF=RA-+HAEE - EFRZK
RHE - ERAR2RBIEZKIA

,fé‘v yEm A5 =

BER -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. iz 7
Number of shares Amount
B 8 B x|
Notes ‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
P & Fhz TET ARETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01each &A% & @A%0.017E T
At 1 January 2012 WZZE——-F—Hf—H 38,000 380 452
Increase in authorised BINEE EBR
ordinary shares (b) 4,962,000 49,620 61,063
At 31 December 2012, RZE——F+-RA=+—H"
1 January 2013 and “E-=F—-f—HK
31 December 2013 ZE-=%+-A=+—H 5,000,000 50,000 61,515
Issued and fully paid: ERTREBHBE .
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01each &A% i @ [%0.0178 7T
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—Hf—H 10 = =
Loan capitalisation BERERNET (a) 10 = —
Capitalisation issue BAR(LELT (b) 1,389,980 13,900 11,295
Issue of ordinary shares in RAREEMmMET
public offering 2T B () 150,000 1,500 1,219
Issue of ordinary shares upon RITE BB 1T
exercise of share options 2B 28 3,000 30 25
At 31 December 2012 and RZBE——F+-A=+—HK
at 1 January 2013 “E—=F—f—H 1,543,000 15,430 12,539
Issue of ordinary shares upon RITEBRERE T 2 EAR
exercise of share options 28 42,400 424 368
At 31 December 2013 R-_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H 1,585,400 15,854 12,907
TERREBEEERATE T —=FFK 120



26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 5 January 2012, the Company allotted and issued 8,872 shares
to Team King Limited (“Team King”) and 1,128 shares to Joyful
Promote Limited (“Joyful Promote”) in full satisfaction of a loan in
an aggregate sum of approximately RMB108.03 million due from
the Company to the shareholders of the Company.

On 5 January 2012, following the authorised share capital of the
Company increased from HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000 by the
creation of an additional 4,962,000,000 shares, the Company
allotted and issued 1,389,980,000 new shares to Team King and
Joyful Promote. An amount of approximately HK$13,900,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
be capitised and applied in paying in full at par a total of
1,389,980,000 shares for allotment and issue to the above
shareholders.

The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 6 January 2012 and 150,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at HK$0.28 per share.

27. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

121

(a) Group

Details of movements on the Group’s reserve are as set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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26. IR A (&

RZZE—=—F—AAA8 ' ARFDHA
NMOBERAR (DRI RBEEERAF
([BE]) g &k3778,872/% & 1,128%
B&19 - LUBR AR AR AR AR AR
2B # AR #108,030,0007T 2 B3 -

R-ZFE——F—AAB BEEX
4,962,000,000/8 /% 5 * AR RBEE
[i% 45 F 380,0007% 7T 1% 2 50,000,000/
L& - ARE D BRI R B E B
K #771,389,980,000 ¥ i 5 ° AR
AR5 5 (B BR & Btk AR £913,900,0007%8
TYBEEAR - W AMNRE AR
M b ol % R OB B R B T 48 AT
1,389,980,000% & 17 °

RRAFRMHR T ——F— A/NE R
RFrEIZEMR £ - 150,000,0008% & A%
E{E0.0178 T 2 B fp Jh iR B AR0.28/8 7T
B"IT o

27. ik — AEERAAT

(a) A&KH

AEEREERBREBERN AR
ABBE -
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27. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY (Continveq)  27. it — AREBR AR 7

(#&)
(b) Company (b) &2
Share
Contributed Share Exchange option  Accumulated
surplus premium reserve reserve losses Total
(note c) (note d)
EER R EE EXGE BRERE iR &%

(B&c) (Hitd)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2012 RZE--5-F-H 51,110 - - - (8,054) 43,056
Loan cepitalisation ~ EFEA(Y (i 26(a)

inote 26(a) - 108,300 - - - 108,300
Capitalisation issue ~ BA{¢ %47 (F3£26(0)

Inote 26(5) - (11,299) - - - (11,209)

Issue of ordinary shares AR EEMETL
in public offering, net &M+ FE

inote 26(0) (H2126(0) - 31,070 - - - 31,070
Equity-settled share R DA RIEL BB iE

options granted (328

inote 28 - - - 11,571 - 11,571
Exercise of share option 17 48 (i :28)

(note 28] - 1,742 - (231) - 1,501
Transaction with owners E#8 AE/T2R 5 - 129,817 - 11,340 - 141,157
Loss and total EEEERZE

comprenensive learct

income for the year - - - - (17,810) (17,810)
At 31 December 2012 A=F-—F

and 1 January 2013~ +ZA=1t-HRK 51,110 129,817 - 11,340 (25,864) 166,403

Z3-=%-8-H

Equity-settled share R MBRELEE
options granted i (s os(i)

inote 28(i) - - - 2515 - 2515
Exercise of share option 178 & (i £28)

(note 28) - 23,611 - (3,21) - 20,340
Lapse of share option &I K7 (i 5E28)

inote 28) - - - 1) 31 -
Transaction with owners £EEAETZZ5 - 23,611 = (787) 31 22,855
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - (5,643) (5,643)
Other comprehensive  £E £ 2 AN

income for the year - - 244 - - 244
Total comprehensive ~ FE 2 AMELH

income for the year - - 244 - (5,643) (5,399)
M 31 December 2013 WN=F—=F

+=A=1-# 51,110 153,428 204 10,553 (31,476) 183,859
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27.

28.

123

RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

(C) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the
net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to the restructuring exercise.

(d) The share premium account of the Company represents

the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 1 December 2011 for the purpose of
providing incentive or rewards to any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company or any member of the Group or any
other eligible persons (the “Eligible Persons”) for their
contribution to the Group.

On 23 March 2012, the Company granted an aggregate of
150,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.63
per Share to the Eligible Persons, which entitled them to
subscribe for an aggregate of 150,000,000 new ordinary
Shares.

On 21 May 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of
8,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.19 per
Share to the Eligible Persons, which entitled them to subscribe
for an aggregate of 8,000,000 new ordinary Shares.

On 20 November 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of
47,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.63 per
Share to the Eligible Persons, which entitled them to subscribe
for an aggregate of 47,000,000 new ordinary Shares. There is
a vesting condition in relation to the approval for the application
of national third party payment and settlement license* on the
47,000,000 share options granted. No equity-settled share-
based payment has been charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013 as the vesting condition has not yet
been fulfilled.

27.

28.

otes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R AR Y =

W — AKEREQT

(%)

(c) ExAERERKBHBARTZEA
EFEERBEHEHCETESR
B ARABRAR 2 EEZHEE
B o

(d) &2F 2B ER TG

HEHRAR B S HITRMEEL

ER -

RGO R/EESR (UK
REEH)

ARABR_FB——F+-H—BHEH
FERcERTE ((BRAERTE]) - UBLA
RAHAKEETAXERF 2 EME
B FRBEESNAREMEMASERA
T (EEBAL]) HAKEMIEER
B R A

el

RZZT—ZF=ZA=+=H ' KAQH
RITEEER0.63BTRAEERALR
& ££150,000,00017 iR #E + AR T
18 E 4 7 R A 2£150,000,0008% 37 %
g o

RZZT—=FRA=+—H ' AQH
BITEEER119BTREERALR
4 ££8,000,00017 BE A% AE - IR F 1%
ZREFREE S £8,000,0000% %1 & B
A% o

RZTE—=F+—A=+H8  AQF
BITEEER1.63BTREERALR
& $£47,000,00017 fE B - W T
18 5 F R B A ££47,000,0008% 51 &
B - B H Z247,000,00015 i A% #E
MBEESNEBTAIE L BEES
B RBEE BEZT—=F1+=
A=+—BLEHE AR RREKE
BARM - BEE ARG BEERM K (AR
REE)RBEP I -
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

It is estimated that the fair value of the 150,000,000 share
options and 8,000,000 share options granted by the Company
were approximately HK$14.26 million (or approximately
RMB11.57 million) and HK$3.16 million (or approximately
RMB2.52 million) respectively, which were one-off and non-
cash expense in nature. For further information in relation to
the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the Company’s
prospectus dated 29 December 2011.

Details of share options granted or outstanding

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme during the year ended

28. LR AEENSR (AR
REHE) @)

A2 B H 2 150,000,00017 B AL AE K
8,000,00017 & I 1 2 b 5T A F1E S Al
4 A214,260,0008 T (AR
11,570,0007T) }3,160,0007% 7t (34 49
AR#¥2,520,0007T) © B—XMKRIE
REMHE - EHEBRESE CE—F
ER o B2MARRBASgAE T ——
F+ZAZHNARAZHBBRER -

£ 45 70 140 R AT 450 o S R
F15

2t B9 71 R 1T 68 PO BB AR A I =
= —ft- A=t AIFE

31 December 2013 were as follows: BREFHNAT :
2013 Price
Number o% share options of shares
BEEEE RE
Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled Balance asat  Date of Exercisable Exercise
Name and category  Balance as at during during during during 31 December  grant of periods of price per
of participant 1 Jﬁi@ary 291$3 the year the year the year the year - 29153 share option  share options  share option
-A-f ] ) ) BREE o ___ BEESH
SEAZRERAR &8 AEEDRH $$EEH§) AEERAN  AEEREE &% RiAH BREZTEH ﬁﬁ%
note
%i%) AT
Director
gz
Mr. Chen Xiao Li 15,400,000 - - - - 15,400,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 to 0.63
R 22 March 2015
—F--F —F--
=Btz =A-t=AH%
—2-hf
=A-1-H
Consultants 77,000,000 - (7,000,000) - - 70,000,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 to 0.63
5 22 March 2015
i S 3
=B=+= =Zf=t=HZ
“E-RE
=A=tzH
- 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 21 May2013 1 May2014to 119
(note ) B 30 April 2016
(GiEd) “T-ZE  E-Qf
BA-t-H #A-HZ
ZERE
mA=1H
- 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000 20 November 1 November 2014 to 1.68
[note i) 2013 31 October 2016
k) ZE-cf% ZE-[E
t=A=tR  ft-A-RE
2
TA=1-H
SJu%tota\ 77,000,000 14,000,000 (7,000,000) - - 84,000,000
/! \E
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. LR BEEMNR (UK
(Continued) REH) &
Details of share options granted or outstanding 2R LM RITEZERE
(Continued) ﬁ % (&)
2013 Price
Number_ oé share options of shares
BEERE R
Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled Balance asat  Date of Exercisable Exercise
Name and category Balance as at during during during during 31 December  grant of periods of price per
of participant 1 Jan_uary 2013 the year the year the year the year ~ 2013 share option  share options  share option
-5-g ] ) tZAZ1-8 BEA  BEESH
BEAZBERAT 268 REERRHE ¢$Eah§) AEEEAN AEECHE &% RHAH BREZES hﬁg
note
(%E‘ze) BT
Employees 53,400,000 - (35,400,000) - - 18,000,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 to 0.63
&g 22 March 2015
“E--E ZER-CE
ZB=t=H =ZA=t=H%
Z3-nE
=B-1ZH
600,000 - - (200,000) - 400,000 23 March 2012 7 July 2012 to 0.63
6 July 2015
“E-—F  “F-"F
ZA=tZR +tAtHZ
“E-1%
tARH
600,000 - - (200,000) - 400,000 283 March 2012 1 August 2012 to 0.63
31 August 2015
“E--E  ZE3-CE
ZR=t=A N\f-BHZ
—E-1F
NA=1-H
- 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 21 May2013 1 May2014to 119
énote i 30 April 2016
liR) “E-ckE B E
1A-t-B #A-R%
S
MA=TA
- 37,000,000 - - - 37,000,000 20 November 1 November 2014 to 1.63
[note i 2013 31 October 2016
GiEi) Z5-ZF 3P
t-A-tE +-A-BE
“ZR
tH=1-8
SJuBr-total 54,600,000 41,000,000  (35,400,000) 400,000) - 59,800,000
Zﬂ?gerll 147,000,000 55,000,000  (42,400,000) (400,000) - 159,200,000
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. AR 10 B E BT (AR
(Continued) REH) &
Details of share options granted or outstanding 2R RITEZERE
(Continued) %Eﬁ 'I‘% (&)
Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options BEFEIIR MM ARITE R EARER =
granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December E-—_F+A=+t—BIEFEZF
2012 were as follows: LEBHMT ¢
2012 Price
Number_ o_f_sha_re options of shares
TLTE B
Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled Balance asat  Date of Exercisable Exercise
Name and category Balance as at during during during during 31 December  grant of periods of price per
of participant 1 Jgi@%y 291; the year the year the year the year — 201é share option  share options  share option
T -p-8 ] ) +ZBZt-B  BEE  BEASE
SEAZHEERER 2t REEERE $EEE%§) REEEAN AREEDHM Z%ﬁ REAH BREZTES ﬁﬁg
note
(F%ﬁf%) AT
Director
£z
Mr. Chen Xiao Li - 15,400,000 - - - 15,400,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 to 0.63
RIS o 22 Merch 2015
“2p=fzp Zptizes
_T-n%
:ﬂ:+:ﬁ
Consultants - 77,000,000 - - - 77,000,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 0.63
BE . _gMgm2m
“2p=izp Zptizes
_T-1%
:ﬂ:+:ﬁ
Employees - 56,400,000 (3,000,000) - - 53,400,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 0.63
fEs %MmeO
Z§-—& %%
=A-t=B =f=t=BH%
—2-1%
=A-1:H
600,000 - - - 600,000 23 March 2012 7 July 2012 to 0.63
6 July 2015
“f--F E-_F
ZA-t=zR +tAtHZ
—3-1%
tA~A
600,000 - - - 600,000 23 March 2012 1 August 2012 to 0.63
31 August 2015
“f--F CZE-CF
=A-t=zR N\f-HZ
—3-1%
NA=t—H
SJu%—tota\ - 57,600,000 (3,000,000) - - 54,600,000
/ \E
g%m - 150,000,000 (3,000,000) - — 147,000,000
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) On 21 May 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of 8,000,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$1.19 per share of the
Company to the eligible persons. The market price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant was HK$1.19 per share. Half of the
share options are exercisable from 1 May 2014 and 30 April 2015
and the other half of the share options are exercisable from 1 May
2015 to 30 April 2016. Each of the grantees paid HK$1 to the
Company on acceptance of the offer of share option. There is no
vesting condition or vesting period on the options granted. Equity-
settled share-based payment of approximately RMB2,515,000 has
been charged to profit or loss for the year in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy set out in note 5.13. The fair value for
total share options granted was determined by LCH(Asia-Pacific)
Surveyors Limited, a firm of independent valuers. The following
inputs were used in determining the fair value of options granted
during the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 755 R AR B

28. LR AEENSR (AR

BH)

3% W 18 R 1T 2 B AR A
1B @®

=
m

RZB—=FRA=-+—08  &xQFMA
AERATEETEBASRAA AR
1.19% T 2 #578,000,00017 i A%
o RIBFHBE  ARBERGZTER
BR119BTT - FHBRBEAINR=_Z—
MERA—RBE-ZE—RAFMA=1+H
HERNTE S FEREARR-F
—RHFERA—RE-ZTE—XRFNA=1+
AHARIATITE - AR ATEENE T
RiEZEZRRARARRAZMBITZR
8 o BMHZ BRET EHE KRB
H o AR BEEMNTK CARALEHE) 1
AR #2,515,0007t 2 R KM 755.13F7
B2 AEBE ST ERT AFERRE -
Bl 2 B R E A EH B HERD
FSEITREMARARERE - TH@MA
HFRDAREEFANMTRLEREZQ

=
=

F1E -
Batch 1 Batch 2
=it Eo
Grant date A H 21 May 2013
T =FRA=-+—H
Option pricing model used FrAERETEERR Binomial option pricing model
“IEHEEERER
Weighted average exercise price fl#EF1577 (# & HK$1.197# 7T
Annualized volatility FEIREE 58% 56%
Risk-free interest rate = 3 b ) 2R 0.18% 0.24%
Expected life of the option B AR ) 78 B 4F B 1.94 yearsfE 2.95 years4F

The annualised volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price and by reference to other similar industry as
listed in the PRC, adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate.

FEBIERTIRBARBREAE R
RBERHE LT ZELUTE - LRE
B A2 BB R ROK S 2 2 8 {F
o RAMABHMFHEREEEEZ
REMEFERE -
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

Details of share options granted or outstanding
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

On 20 November 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of
47,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.63 per share
of the Company to the eligible persons. The market price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK$1.62 per share.
Half of the share options are exercisable from 1 November 2014
and 31 October 2015 and the other half of the share options are
exercisable from 1 November 2015 to 31 October 2016. Each of
the Grantees has paid HK$1 to the Company on acceptance of the
offer of share option. There is vesting condition on the options
granted. No equity-settled share-based payment has been charged
to profit or loss for the year as the vesting condition has not yet
fulfilled.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses comprises:

28. DA 0 B B ENFR (LR
RER) =

B % H = R AT 2 B IR
18 ®

PisE

(i

(i)

(&

RZZ—Z=F+—A=+H  AQAHE
BERATEETEERERAA AR
51.637% 7T 2 #8531 47,000,000175 & A%
o RIBFHBE  ARBERGZTER
FR1.62H8TT o FEERETRN - —
mE+—A—RE-_ZE—RFE+A=1+
— BRI AT - B—FERER TR
—E—RF+—A—HAE=-ZT—XF+
A=+—BHEARTE - SEEALE
MR T HERE 2 EERFRA AR X
BTZRE  BHZEBREREEBIK
- HRBB KM M ARER - WEREF
EREIRET A AR A E A Z (VAR
REHE) o

VARBRAD AR R UABRAAEE) 2 FAsE
B

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFTT
Equity-settled schemes to mES (BEES) RHE2
employees (including director) VARG #E 4 H 5T &l 1,257 5,631
Equity-settled schemes to eligible [A11E 8 & & E A5 2
persons other than employees & & 1% A L1 A B
and directors EEA A 1,258 5,940
2,515 11,571

Share options were granted to the consultants in light of their
contribution and services to the Group. The Group measured the
fair value of services received from the consultants by reference to
the fair value of those granted to eligible employees as management
considers that the services provided by the consultants and
employees are similar in nature.

TERREREEARAR — T =FFR

BT TR - LRBMIPIERE
B{EH 2 SRt R et 2 IR%E - lE R
ERAERERES ARt 2 IRBELE
LR BAEESERTEERER
ZBERER R ER At 2R R AR
B2 A -
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28. LR BEEAR (LLIR

(Continued) REH) &

Details of share options granted or outstanding SR ARITHEZERE

(Continued) ﬁ% (&)
Notes: (Continued) Wi (&)
(iv)  Share options outstanding and weighted average exercise prices (iv)  FARRITE 2 ERE R INETFI917E
during the year are as follows: BE2HWT :
2013 2012
—B—=fF —E—_fF
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
iEFEH hniEFg
A TEE #H A TEE
HK$ HKS$
BT P& TT
Qutstanding at 1 January ®—A—H
i ARATE 147,000,000 0.63 — —
Granted during the year REFERL 55,000,000 1.57 150,000,000 0.63
Exercised during the year REFEITHE (42,400,000) 0.63 (3,000,000) 0.63
Lapsed during the year REFERK (400,000) 0.63 — —

Outstanding at 31 December R+=—RAR=+—H

M AT 159,200,000 0.95 147,000,000 0.63
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options FRITEERES B Z NEFERER
exercised during the year was HK$1.56 (2012: HK$0.68). 1568 (ZE— =4 : 0.68/T) °
Of the total number of share options outstanding at 31 December R-E—=FE+-_A=1+—BHK1TE
2013, 112,200,000 (2012: 147,000,000) had vested and were 2 BERSHEMA SR » 112,200,0001p (ZF
exercisable at the end of the year. — 4 : 147,000,00017) B IHE B 45 57

JB I AT EFRATE ©

(v)  The exercise price of options outstanding at the end of the year V) REXR G HARTEZBRETEESS
ranged between HK$0.63 and HK$1.63 (2012: HK$0.63) and their 0.63BILE1.63BL (T — —F :
weighted average remaining contractual life was 21 months (2012: 0.637%7T) * MR T2 MEFHEHNF
27 months). HA21ER (ZZ—=4F : 27@R) -
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29. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY

(a) Operating lease commitments

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group in respect of buildings with
related parties (note 30(a)) and independent third parties
as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

5 755 R AR B B

29. EE — NEB R AR T
(a) KEHERE

R-E—=%+—-A=+—H "
RIEA S B EEEE S (7E30()
MBME=F 2 A HEEgEE
EREF I RRKEEMSES I
™

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT

Within one year —FE2ZN 2,350 1,536
Within two to five years “ERF 857 148
3,207 1,684

The Group leases certain properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to three
years, with options to renew the lease terms at the expiry
dates or at days as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective landlords. None of these leases
includes any contingent rentals.

TERREREEARAR — T =FFR

AEERBKEHERRETY
X -MEVZRE—Z=F "7
EENI B SRRAEEEE
XTEMRBEBEEE - 18\
HEBREMHAELE -
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29. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

131

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R AR Y =

29. &IE — AKERAXLQTF

(&)
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAREE
The Group had the following capital commitments as at RZE—=F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2013: REBBUTEREAE
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Contracted, but not ERTA) - (BREE -
provided for:
Land and buildings THREF — BER
— related parties (MI3E19)
(note 19) 1,760 1,760
Property, plant and L EIN
equipment 1,627 =
Construction in progress {EiZ T2 - 21,683
3,387 23,443
There are no operating lease commitments and capital RABRZE—=F+=A=+
commitments for the Company as at 31 December 2013 — B A A T RO B AN
(2012:Nil) BE(CZZE—=F &) -
(c) Other commitments (c) HbAE

On 7 May 2013, the Group entered into the agreement
with the purchaser (the purchaser is also the constructor
of Aurora Liaohai), an independent third party, pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to transfer Units A, B, C
and D on 5" Floor of building no.1 of Aurora Liaohai at an
aggregate consideration of RMB12,075,360 in order to
partiality offset the construction payment to the purchaser.
The properties are recorded as construction-in-progress
under property, plant and equipment as at 31 December
2013.

RZE—=FRAtAH ' ~5H
HE 7 (AR BES 2 AER -
BREBYE=R)FILIBE &
It AEEREESZEBEAES—
BIEENEA B  CKDET -
BREREARK12,075,3607T °
B E M E A XN 2 BEE
A -RZBE—=F+=R=+—
B ZEVERDE  BERF
HWE T REREIRE -
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29. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(c)

Other commitments (continued)

On 20 December 2013, the Group entered into another
agreement with the purchaser, an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Group has conditionally agreed to
sell and the purchaser has conditionally agreed to
purchase Units A, B and C of each of 6, 7"and 8" floors
of building no.1 of Aurora Liaohai at an aggregate
consideration of RMB40,158,000. The properties are
recorded as construction-in-progress under property,
plant and equipment and RMB3,000,000 was received
as a deposit as at 31 December 2013.

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@)

(b)

29. FAE — REB R AKRAQ T

(%)

(c)

H i EIE (2)

R-E—=F+—-"A-+H" K
EEEEH BYFE=ZH)FTLR
— I - B AREEKHE
AELEMEFEREREEE
JBRES—SRESN - tRN\E
A -BRCE BREARARK
40,158,000 - R=ZZT—=F 1
—A=+—8B ZEVERY
¥ BMERSEETCHRATR
T7# - BB UELAR%S3,000,000
TAERES °

30. BAE KT

Balances and transactions (@) EREXRF
Other than the related party balances and transactions BRERE B IS Ik b BB o P i
disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial BrRAEBRERRR SN AE
statements, the Group had the following material BERFABANTERBEIR
transactions with related parties during the year: Z
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
Rental expenses paid to EfNEEFESRAX
related parties 97 117
The Group entered into one to three years lease in respect AEBEBBEELSE THEWEE]
of certain leasehold properties from related parties. With VEZF2HE o KLRREH
reference to the terms negotiated between the related BAERZAGR  AEEBHA
parties, the Group paid rental expenses for office premises EVEMSAINELL (REEZT
to Ms. Ma Lee Kwan, mother of Mr. Chang, and certain F)RETHAEARINFHESHA
related companies, of which the Company’s shareholders X AREIZBRRABZEBER
are also the major shareholders of these related A EERRE -
companies.
Compensation of key management personnel h) BEEFETEEEBAE

The emoluments of directors who are also identified as
members of key management of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 11(a).

TERREREEARAR — T =FFR

EFE(RALAEEETEEEAEBY
KE)REZE—_ZT—=F+-A=
+—HBLIEFE 25 ER T
11(a) °
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

133

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

3. TR T B (EEH)

NZE—=F+-"A=+—0 &8

instruments as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: FleMTAZERENT !
Group Company
PN | b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-=f —-IT-—-Ff ZB-=f -T—-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETHT ARETR ARETH
Financial assets — Loans and tREE —BRR
receivables JE s BR 3%
Account receivables R BR X 17,084 21,466 = =
Amount due from subsidiaries L= INGIE S - = 133,438 128,521
Other receivables and deposits paid HittE W HERE MRS 26,400 7,505 12,146 =
Pledged bank deposits BERRTER 54,609 47,389 = =
Restricted bank deposits XBRHFTER 16,191 14,411 - —
Cash and cash equivalents Be MR EEERE 9,332 4,002 350 151
123,616 94,773 145,934 128,672
Financial liabilities — At amortised SREE — RBHERA
costs
Accruals and other payables Rt B R R H A 3R 40,751 15,810 433 840
Other borrowing HifE e 23,639 = - =
64,390 15,810 433 840
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise account
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits, accruals and other
payables and other borrowing. These financial instruments
mainly arise from its operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated to their fair values as at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement, and
therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum
level, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The board of the directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and these are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value
or future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from
changes in interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments will
result in the Group facing the risk of changes in market interest
rate.

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest
bearing bank balances. The Group currently has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate but
may enter into interest rate hedging instruments in the future
to hedge any significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

5 755 R AR B B

32 BEEREEEERBER

REBZTZr T ABERKER
NEADEUGRIR - EEMRITER
RelReFERE  XRHRTHEF
R EERTEAMEMBENKIER - AR
HEE ZEEMTATRREH
RRERTS

REBREHR  AEEERTAZEK
EEEKRE 2 A FERE - 2FER
BEORBERBREZFERIAL
HEMSEREL -

FZEMFHF 2 MEB B AL - ¥
RTRAARRMAFLRERHE 2 F
B ABEXBEETE - BRBERZ
HE R R M AT BT ERBEARE -

BRASECRTAZTZRAR AT
XREK - HNERR - EERRERE
BEERR  BRASEY HiERZ
AEDREI&E - BANEELE AT
MOTETAREMT AEHPRAE -
AEEYBRFARBTITEESRT
BEFEERE EFgRNIRAEE
BEAERRZBER - ZBHNT o

A = = b

MERBECHIARFENRKER
ERERNEEFHMNE AR - %
AR TAKEBRAKBEAAZTS
MEBHER -

AEEFERREBEABRITES
B R o NG B IR B 30 4 ) 3R 5 HR DA
HREmE 2 MERRE  ERERARE
EREARFEREERTE MY
AT A o
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32.

135

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

As the Group’s revenue and expenses are mainly in RMB and
most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the Group’s major
operating entities, the currency risk resulting from the Group’s
daily operations is considered not significant. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to obtain
financial guarantee from the Group are subject to management
review. The Group entered into financial guarantee contracts
in which it has guaranteed the bank the repayment of the loan
by customers of the Group. The Group has the obligation to
compensate the bank for the loss it would suffer because the
customers fail to repay. The Group’s maximum exposure under
the financial guarantee contracts is disclosed in “liquidity risk”
below. To mitigate such risk, the Group requests its customers
to provide collaterals as appropriate. In the event of default or
failure to repay any outstanding guarantee amounts by the
customers, the Group will proceed with the sale of collaterals.
In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level, the Group’s
average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to ensure the
recoverability of the outstanding guarantee amount. As at 31
December 2013, the Group’s exposures under unexpired
financial guarantee contracts were secured by the pledged
assets of the customers as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. M EREEBEREE

(%)
S5 L B

HRAEBzWERAXETE/AR
% MABOASEEERAGHIA
ARERI (HAAREETELEER
ZMEEER) ARERABEBEL
ZHMNER BRI NER - AEEBRFIL
EINEHIPER o A EEEBER
SRR - YENFEERE EY
HREAINE R o

EEER

AEEZBRERMERAAKEE
TREERZEPHERERESR
8- ARBEETMERERALN » &
HAREBRETF RIRTTERE 2 KA
EHER - AEBEEETHERP KK
EEREZERBERTEX ZEXK -
AEEREEFRENA T ZHEARER
BERTXIRBESRER] - ARE
ZER  AEBEREPREMESZ
B - MEFPENIREEEREM
AENERE  AEEKHEER
i o REFEBEERRBKT KK
B2 FHERE R ELXRERRE0%
AT ARERARE N EREEZ AT
e R_F—=F+_A=+—8"
AEERBMBEEREHATL A
TZEEFREEFEER
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 32. B iR EE HERBEE

POLICIES (Continued) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRE ®)
2013 2012
—E—=5F —=F——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARETFT
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - E M & & 862,108 640,568
Inventories e 739,002 1,142,892
Account receivables JrE W BR 3K 56,801 62,382
Bank deposits (note 22) RITF K (F15E22) 16,191 14,411
1,674,102 1,860,253

RRERERIFHEER  MAKE
ZEERRBRIYTEKX - REEFAHIE
 5n LA B B B I AR SR 2 LR - B
BERANELEBRBERANETEFZE
TEEFRER R =FK_F
——f+ZA=+—H BEREE
(ARRARERIPBEERENZ
RR\Be R AR R (W0 EXAid) ) 2 AR

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group
hold collaterals to cover its risks associated with account
receivables. Account receivables arising from the financial
guarantee contracts were secured by certain assets of the
customers. The fair value of the pledged assets, which are also
pledged to secure the Group’s exposure under unexpired
financial guarantee contracts as mentioned above, as at 31

December 2013 and 2012 is as follows: m
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment 1% - E M & & 366,362 231,987
Inventories FE 163,962 336,082
Account receivables JrE UK BR 3R 25,000 20,437
Bank deposits (note 22) RITFE K (F15E22) 1,500 2,660
556,824 591,166
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continueq)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly
comprise of pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents, arises from potential default of
the counter-party, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments. Credit risk in pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents is mitigated as
cash is deposited in the banks of high credit rating.

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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32. B EREEREBFERBX

(48)
EERK &

AEEHEMERTAE(Z2RFECER
RITEFR - IRBIBTERRRE R
ReFEREB)ZEERRREHEHE T
ARRENZER  HERKERBER
ZETRAZKREE - FBREDHERR
SEEMRZRT  DERRTER
RS EREFERB ZEERBREA
B o

MENE & [ b

AEEEEEERBAIRAHRBDE
B BRAREEFTRRESH
B NENEHEREHARDHESER
SJZO

TREAAEBRIES LRIRFR
ZEBBEZIIHER
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TERREREEARAR — T =FFR

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 32. BI S E M EE B ERBUK
POLICIES (continueq) (&)
Liquidity risk (continueq) EERE @)
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within Repayable on
amount cash flow 1 year demand
BHKE
BREHRE
REME ok R—FR REREER
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PN | AR®ETRE AR®Trn AR¥Tn AR%T=x
2013 —E-=F
Accruals and other payables fESTE R KA BN R 40,751 40,751 40,751 -
Other borrowing (note) Hinfg g (i) 23,639 23,639 - 23,639
64,390 64,390 40,751 23,639
Financial guarantees issued BRTHEER
Maximum amount guaranteed BRERFANE 426,100 426,100 - 426,100
2012 —E-CF
Other payables and accruals EEAFIER BT E R 15,810 15,810 15,810 =
Financial guarantees issued DERITHEER
Maximum amount guaranteed EERZARE 410,100 410,100 - 410,100
Company
Y\ UNE|
2013 —E-=F%
Accruals and other payable B BAREMENTE 433 433 433 -
2012 —E-—_—F
Other payables and accruals Htt N EREFER 840 840 840 —
Note: Ff 5
Other borrowing is repayable on 25 March 2014, it contains clauses which EmEEER-_Z—NE=A=-+HAEE-
give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate EIEFBE - ERAASERBEERIEMES
payment. B o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
debts divided by total equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s strategy was
to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital level in order
to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted by
the Group include, without limitation, reviewing future cash flow
requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing
plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable
level of capital to support its business.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. M EREEBEREE

(#)
EXEE

AEFBEAER 2 TEARRRER
SEARNRFERERLELERSE
FREZEALR  UEHEERE
RIZEFREE -

ARBERBEBEREZE(CRIAME
B 2 B 51 B IR H B AR AR INIA
HE - BERIAEERNER A&
B TR R BN TR IS - MK
REMBARBETHR - RFRN - A
MERBEAZEBER BRIURELE

AEEFERABELX (AR EAERIA
RESRARER) REREXN -

REREPRR  AEB 2 RERER
BREzAGBLR  UAXFEER - K
SERN T ERMERETRNE
BIARRBREREERR N HRER
ZEEN - REFAIBRITREEAIEK
FRABKREFERBEFE (NF
B) URERRAKEREAEKFZE
AXFHRR -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 32. B iR EE HERBEE

POLICIES (continueq) (&)
Capital management (Continued) EXREE &)
The gearing ratio are as follows: BELEQMT :
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Other borrowing and total debt  EfEE N B E#E%E 23,639 —

Equity attributable to the owner A Q &#EA AEIHERS

of the Company 202,623 190,280

Gearing ratio BELX 0.12 —
33. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 3B. BRNEREN

The Group issues performance guarantee contracts for which AEEROERGD  BUAEER
the Group agrees to provide guarantees to its customers who BEREREPHNIGEHEAR TR
enter into contracts with third parties for services to be rendered ZRBIMEZERBE=FFI L2
or goods to be supplied within an agreed time period. The R RBRHER AEEBEEARE
Group has the obligation to compensate the third parties for CHRAREECEPENFEEZE
their losses arising from the defaults in contracts by the Group’s BREEN RZTE—=F+"AH=
customers. As at 31 December 2013, there was no outstanding +—H - REEBAOEREG LI E R
balance of unexpired performance guarantee contracts as REEHRZ - DEMBERHNEREG L
performance guarantee contracts were all completed (2012: EETK(ZE—ZF: &) -
Nil).
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33. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 33. BNIEREHN »
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(Continued)

The Group’s exposure of account receivables of performance
guarantee contracts was secured by assets of the customers.
The fair value of theses pledged assets as at each reporting
date is as follows:

A B R E N RRA B EKER A
W AR mES T EEEER - %
SREREAERSRE AN ATE
mF

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—_F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETF T

Inventories FE 24,140 _

The risk under any performance guarantee contracts is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of
the amount of the resulting claim. The nature of the business
underwritten by the Group is generally of one year or less in
duration; however it is still subject to some unpredictability.
The key risks that the Group faces are timing and severity of
claims relative to expectations.

The risk for performance guarantee contracts is dependent
upon the occurrence of uncertain future events, in particular,
the extent of service not rendered or products not supplied by
the customers and the value of the contractual obligation that
may arise from its customers’ failure to perform services or
supply goods to the counterparties.

EAENERG QR T ZAR SR
EMHHR AR URAHBRER
TR NEEMN - REBMAARZE
BHEE-—RAM—FIR—F A
AT AR TRRIMER ] o A6 B Ay
EHzT2EMRERBHEB 2 RE
By R B E N -

BHOERAKN ZEBRIURNRKELE
ZTIHEEEN  BRIREPARERM
RBHREMR » ARREFF KRB
TREHERGRERMELEZANEE
TH o
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33. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

It is the Group’s objective to deal only with credit worthy
customers. Its policy for accepting guarantee services is based
on its risk assessment of customers and their collaterals. The
Group has taken measures to identify risks and manage such
risks at every stage along the guarantee approval process and
the post-transaction monitoring process. The Group conducts
thorough due diligence with a strict credit approval process for
the approval of performance guarantee. The Group’s due
diligence team evaluates the proposed pledged assets through
on-site visits and by taking into account of liquidity, prospects,
market outlook of the pledged assets (if applicable) and general
economic factors which may impact the value of the pledged
assets. In arriving at a valuation, the due diligence team
considers the historical experience with similar collateral, current
market prices, industry trends, government data and other
relevant sources. The Group also reviews the creditworthiness
of its customers from time to time and ensure that sufficient
collaterals are obtained to cover potential losses. The Group
established a post-transaction monitoring process implemented
by the Group’s experienced monitoring team to conduct regular
inspections and valuations on the collaterals provided by
customers and customers’ creditworthiness on monthly basis.
The Group also conducts spontaneous inspection of the
operation of its customers. Based on these assessments, the
Group considers whether any insurance liability has to be made.

There is no significant concentration of risk under performance
guarantee contracts as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

5 755 R AR B B

33. BHERESYN @

AEEESREERFZEPENTR
5 o EBRRTIREEP 2R E &
BEFRECEMR  AERTEMNE
RERTS 7N 6% B B BREXFS 5 A 28 5l
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BESEKEEEME  EREEHE
FREEZRPE  AIREMERE @0
BA) A RAIRE e ECEREEEE
ZREBERER  UHBRECDERE
EETHE o  REDGHER - ERE
EEFEZRAUERR 2 BER
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A Ko E At R RBE SRR © AN 5% B IR B A
AEREFPZERRR  BREESE
IR AR BEREE - AREE]
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KB ERBRET BAHEFPRE
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BEFETB R MR o RIE LAY
it NREBRERS T ERILAEMR
BREME -
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ERAEYHEBETITESEAREPER (ZF
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 January 2014, the Group entered into the agreement
with the purchaser, an independent third party, pursuant to
which the Group has conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase 9th and 10th
floors of building no.1 of Aurora Liaohai at an aggregate
consideration of RMB20,489,560. The properties are recorded
as construction-in-progress under property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2013.

The Group shall deliver the properties to the purchaser before
31 August 2014. Upon delivery of the properties, the
construction completion certificate in respect of the properties
shall have been obtained, and a technical report shall be issued
by a qualified property surveyor in respect of the area of the
properties. Should the Group fail to deliver the properties in 90
days after 31 August 2014, the purchaser shall have the right
to terminate the agreement in which circumstance the Group
shall return to the purchaser all the consideration already paid
by the purchaser and bear the relevant default liability.
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4. HEHERSEE

RZZE—MF—A++H AEBEHE
BH BIAE=77)F:HE - Bt -
AEBBERKGRAZELERES KM
REBEBAES—SFEEALRT
B #BREAARYK20,489,5607T °
RZE—=F+"A=+—8 ' %5
MEFEINRIE - BERZEERETZ
fEEIRE -

AEEER-_Z—WNENA=+—8
RIABARNZEMSE - ZEMER
NEEEERERETRER T AKER
X WEEEEREEREMT R
MZEMEBMBEARMBEE i
REBREN-_ZE—NENA=+—
HENLTRARNZEME  EF
BREKRtZBENASEEMNE 2
BREBEAEDEIN2RENAELH
BHEME -
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